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if appropriate.

O You have signed the form.
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Independent auditor’s report

To: the general meeting of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.

Report on the financial statements 2016

Our opinion

In our opinion:

. the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. as at 31 December 2016 and of its result and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union {EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code;

. the accompanying company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. as at 31 December 2016 and of its result for
the year then ended in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

IVhat we have audited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2016 of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands
B.V., Amsterdam ('the company’). The financial statements include the consoelidated financial
statements of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and its subsidiaries (together: ‘the Group’) and
the company financial statements.

The consolidated financial staternents comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;

. the following statements for 2016: the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
staternents of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows; and

. the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The company financial statements comprise:

) the eompany balance sheet as at 31 Decermber 2016;

. the company profit and loss account for the year then ended;

. the notes, comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements
is EU-IFRS and the relevant provisions of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code for the consolidated
financial statements and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code for the company financial
statemnents.
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The basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the section “Our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements’ of our report.

Independence

We are independent of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. in accordance with the
‘Verordening inzake de onathankelijkheid van accountants bij assuranceopdrachten’ (ViO) and other
relevant independence requirements in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied with the
‘Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants’ (VGBA).

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Report on the other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains
other information that consists of:

. the directors’ report;

. the other information pursuant to Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Based on the procedures performed as set out below, we conclude that the other information:
. is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements;
. contains all information that is required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained in our audit
of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains
material misstatermnents.

By performing our procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part g of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of such procedures was substantially less
than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the directors’
- report and the other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audi?

Responsibilities af the directors
The directors are responsible for:

. the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with EU-IFRS
and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code; and for
. such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. — Ref.: e0404537
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As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going-concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks
mentioned, the directors should prepare the financial statements using the going-concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so. The directors should disclose events and circumstances that may
cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going-concern in the financial
statements,

Owur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to plan and perform an audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain
sufficient and apprapriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion. Qur audit apinion aims to
provide reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high but not absolute leve! of assurance which makes it
possible that we may not detect all misstatements, Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error.
They are considered to be material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users teken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the
effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

A more detailed description of our responsibilities is set out in the appendix to our report.

Amsterdam, 21 June 2017
PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V.

"

P.W.J. Middelhoven RA

Argon Medical Devices Netherlonds B.V., — Ref.: e0404537
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Appendix to our auditor’s report on the financial statements
2016 of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.

In addition to what is included in our auditor’s report we have further set out in this appendix our
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements and explained what an audit involves.

The auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional scepticism throughout
the audit in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements, Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Our audit
consisted, among other things of the following:

. Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional orzissions,
misrepresentations, or the intentional override of internal control.

. Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

. Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonahleness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
. Concluding on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going-concern basis of

accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, concluding whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events and/or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as & going-concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report
and are made in the context of our opinion on the financial statements as a whole. However,
future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going-concern.

. Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Considering our ultimate responsibility for the opinion on the company's consolidated financial
statements we are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.

In this context, we have determined the nature and extent of the audit procedures for components of
the group to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the finanecial
statements as a whole. Determining factors are the geographic structure of the group, the significance
and/or risk profile of group entities or activities, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which the group operates. On this basis, we selected group entities for which an audit or
review of financial information or specific balances was considered necessary.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. — Ref.: e0404537
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Directors’ Report

Principal Activities

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) is a distributor of specialty
medical products mainly manufactured by other affiliated businesses in the United States and Singapore.
The Company offers a bread line of medical devices for Interventional Radiology, Vascular Surgery,
Interventional Cardiclogy and Critical Care procedures. The Company's products are sold thraughout
Europe, the Middle East and Alrica through a combination of direct safes representalives and premier
distributors.

Results and Appropriations

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was €(15,196,758)
and €7,952,969, respectively.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had total equity of €4,274,232 and €19,470,990,
respectively, and the Company’s management board does not recommend the payment of a dividend to
the Company's shareholder at this time.

Business Developments

The Company was incorporated in December 2010 to conduct the activities referred to in the preceding
paragraph in Europe, the Middle East, and Africa which had been previously conducted by other affiliates
of the Company’s uitimate holding company - Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. - following its
acquisition of the Critical Care systems business of Becton, Dickinson, and Company (“BD").

In April 2013, the Company further expanded its product line when the Company ultimate holding
company - Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc., acquired the Interventional Products Business of
Angictech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Angiotech”). The Company participated in this acquisition by acquiring
the outstanding equity interests of Angiotech S.L., Angiotech GmbH, Angiotech Switzerland SA, and
Angiotech SARL, which had distributed the acquired business' products across Europe, the Middte East,
and Africa. - -

In February 2014, as part of a corporate reorganization, the Company purchased Argon Medical Devices
Danmark ApS ("ADAS”) (which included branches in Swaden, Norway, and Finland)} from PBN Medicals
Denmark A/S ("PBN"). PBN and ADAS were acquired from Angiotech in April 2013.

The Company has a number of product lines that require a sales and marketing strategy tailored to our
customers in order to deliver high-quality and cost-effective products. To help broaden awareness, the
Company's sales team participates in several educational symposia and provides training lo customers.
A majority of the sales and marketing approach in the region is direct sales, although it varies depending
on each country’s size and state of development.

Pricewate thouseCoopers
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As of December 31, 2016, Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. Subsidiary, Argon Medical Devices
Switzerland SA, is held for sale. See section "Events after the Balance Sheet Date” for further information.

Research and Development Activities

The Company does not engage in any substantial research and development activities. Research and
development activities are conducted by affiliates of the Company's ultimate holding company - Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc. - and the Company may benefit from those activities in future periads.

Workforce and Carporate Governance Development Activities

Workforce: The Company's workforee consists primarily of employees engaged in selling and distribution
functions which are consistent with the Company's principal activity of distributing specialty medical
products throughout Europe, the Middle East, and Africa. The Company also has a limited number of
employees in the supply chain and finance functions that provide support to the commercial market-facing
activities conducted by the Company. The total size and size of the Company's workforce by country is
contingent upon many factors, including but not limited to changes in the Company’s revenues and/or
profitability in total and by country, and changes in either factor may necessitate changes in the
composition of the Company's workforce in the upcoming fiscal year. Management believes that

the Company’s existing number of employees is sufficient in the current fiscal year. There is no significant
employee turnover during the year.

Corparate Governance: During 2016, the board consists totally of two women. The Company has no
intention in the short term period to change this structure. However, when an opportunity is present and
makes practical business sense, the Company will consider the men to women ratio of the board, but
nomination will be regardless of gender cr culture.

Financing Activities
There were no additional financing activities within 2016,
Risks and Uncertainties

In compliance with the Dutch Accounting Standard 400, the Company addresses risks and uncertainties
within the following sections.

Methodology:

The risk management policies and procedures are key to ensuring proper management of the Company,
All layers of the organization understand that risk management is an important process. Risk
management is mainly cariied out by the organization's executives. Risk management Is a fixed item on
the agenda of senior management meetings held on a regular basis, All employees contribute to
identifying risks and the associated control measures. Contributions to improving risk management are
rewarded in the people performance process. Risks are analyzed on an annual basis and any new risks
are assessed and incorporated during the yearly planning discussion. The Vice President on Sales who

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Accountana BV,
For idenvificancn

pwc purpeses ooly



also acis as the General Manager is responsible for risk managemeni and with the help of the finance
team, conducts biennial meetings for the Company's management board and key employees.

The maost significant risks and the risk reduction measures taken:

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of operational and financial risks: foreign curmrency
exchange rigk, credit risk, liquidity risk, cash flow interest rate risk and concentration risk. The Company’s
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance as well as its group's overall
performance.

Appetite for significant risks:

The current risk profile is determined on the basis of this risk analysis and the control measures. The
current risk profile is assessed and compared with the desired risk profile. Action plans are drawn up for
each risk if the current profile is graded at a higher ievel than the desired risk profite to further

controlfreduce the existing exposure,

Current Desired
Risk Risk
Risks Controls Profile Profile

Foreign currency exchange  Partly self-hedge in the current and prior years Medium  Low
risk

Plan to enter in a forward currency confract in

subsequent year

Credit risk Regular financial review of credit reserves Low Low

Constant and effective communication with
customers through the sates workforce

Liquidity risk Regular cash flow review Low Low
Cash flow interest rate isk ~ Constant communication with affiliated Low Low
_ companies holding the Company's promissory
notes
Concentration risk Regular concentration risk review High Medium

The Company, its registered branches, and its wholly owned subsidiaries operate internationalty and
conduct transactions in multiple foreign currencies which create various foreign currency exposures
primarily with respect to the United States dollar, Singapore dollar, British pound sterling, Swedish krona,
and Danish krone, Polish zloty, Swiss franc, and Norwegian krone. The Company's prineipal currency
exposures refate to the Euro and the United States dollar associated with long-term loan with affiliated
entities. Our objeclive is to minimize the volalility of our exposure to these risks through normal operating
activities which is partly self-hedge. The Company does not hedge these foreign currency exposures and

PricswatathouseCoopers
Actountant M.V,
For fdentificmion

pw& Pusrpoces only



recognized foreign currency transaction gains and losses in its consolidated statements of comprehensive
income. Moreover, the Company's current policy is to not hedge substantially all of its' US dollar-
denominated debt and cost of sales against changes in foreign exchange rates considering the long-term
nature of the US dollar-denominated debt and high turnover of inventory which are mostly purchased
directly from affiliated companies. Management continues to evaluate the impact of the devaluation of
Euro against United States dollar and its impact at the group level,

Credil risk arises from cash and cash equivalent on deposit with banks as well as credit exposures to
customers such as in the case of cutstanding receivables and committed transactions. Credit risk on
oulstanding receivables is managed on a consolidated basis by the Company's ultimate holding company
and its affifiates in order to mitigate the risk of counterparty default and concentration. The ultimate
holding company and its affiliates manages and analyses the credit risk for each of the Company’s
customers before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The credit risk on
liquid funds is limited because the counterparty is a bank with high credit ratings assigned by internationai
credit rating agencies.

Cash flow forecasting is performed at the local level as well as on a consolidated basis by the Company's
ultimate holding company and its affiliates which includes monitoring rolling forecasts of liguidity needs to
ensure the Company has sufficient cash to meet its operational needs. The Company believes that its
liquidity risks are low given its ultimate holding company's intention to support the Company’s fiquidity
needs in order for the Company to meet ils operational needs.

The Company has no significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities except for its promissory note with
Argon Medical Devices, Inc. and PBN Medical Devices Denmark A/S which mature on April 12, 2018 and
December 31, 2018, respectively, and bear interest at a coupon rate of 1.00% and a 6.5% vyield and can
be repaid at any time without penalty or premium.

In the normal course of business, the Company provides credit to customers in the health care industry,
perform credit evaluations of these customers, and maintain allowances for potential credit losses, which
have historically been adequate compared to actual losses. In the past years, the Company has one
Middle East customer that represents 10% or more of our total net sales or accounts receivable, net. The
Company continues to do business with customers in certain Middle East countries that have experienced
deteriorations in credit and economic condilions. These conditions have resulted in, and may continue to
result in, a reduction in value and an increase in the average length of time that it takes to collect accounts
receivable outstanding in these countries. In addition, the Company may also be impacted by declines in
sovereign credit ratings or sovereign defauits in these countries. Extrerne competition in cerlain markets
could cause the Company significant effort to increase marketing and other expenditures and prevent the
Company from increasing prices to recover higher costs and address infiation thereby reducing product
margins or lose market share. Any of the foregoing coutd have a significant adverse effect on the
Company's business, financial condition and resuits of operations. It is the policy of the Company to
observe the highest standards of ethics, honesty and integrity. All employees are required to uphold
these standards and must not have any personat interest that conflicls in any way with the interest of the
Company and its shareholders. The Company has robust ethical guidelines which are illustrated in the
Company’s Human Resource Handbook outlining specific examples of anti-bribery and foreign corrupt
practices act. This handbaok is disseminated to new employees upon hiring. Strict adherence to these
policies is constantly communicated through various means such as electronic correspondence, board
postings and formal meetings to serve as effective reminder to alt employees who are located in various
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parts of the globe. Mareaver, the Company has an active whistleblower program which protects and
encourages employees to report any serious violation in the Company's policies or external laws and
regulations whether in person or anonymously.

Quantification of the impact on the resuit and financial position if the risks materialize;

Foreign currency exchange risk:

A sensitlvity analysis surrounding the impact to the Company's profitability as a result of favorable and
unfavorable fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates is disclosed in the footnotes (Note 4) to
the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Credit risk:
The maximum expostire to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the

Company's balance sheet,

Liquidity risk:

Excluding retated party balances, the Company has a ratio of liquid assets to current liabilities of 1.7 and
3.6 as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. As of December 31, 2016 the continuing business
has a ratio of liquid assets to current liabifities of 2.3. These liquidity asset ratios are considerably high
compared with similar companies in the healthcare industry. Management also believes that it has
sufficient access to its ultimate holding company's funds for emergency purposes. As such, no sensitivity
analysis is performed.

Cash flow interest rate risk;
The Company's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market

interestrates. As such, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

Concentration risk:

The Gompany sells more than $0% of its products in the Middle East market. Should this market
collapse, revenue would fall considerably. Moreover, a sharp fall in prices or sales in this region will
negatively affect the results of the Company. Should the market contract by 50%, this would bring about a
€3 million decrease in revenue with EBITDA declining by €1.3 million.

Risks and uncertainties having a major impact in the past financial year and the consequences:
The Company's risks and uncertainties have had no majorimpact in the past financial year,

Current or planned improvements in the risk management system:

The risk management methodology meets the wishes and requirements of the management of

the Company. The Company has implemented a robust anti-fraud policy to detect and prevent fraud and
violations of applicable laws, which includes a strict requirement prohibiting our employees and agents
from violating these laws. With these policies, there remains some degree of risk that improper conduct
couid occur, thereby exposing us to potentiat liability and the costs associated with investigating potential
misconduct.
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Use of Financial instruments

The Company’s use of financlal instruments [s limiled 1o the extension of credit to s cusiomers in the
ordinary course of business, cash on deposit at banks, and fo the financing activities undertaken with
affitiztes of the Company’s ultimate holding company, Argon Medical Davices Holding, Inc.

The risk posed by the extension of credit {0 its customers In the ardinary course of business Js mitigated
by the Company’s adherence fo sfrict credit policles as overseen by affiliates of the Company’s ultimate
holding company and the risk posed by having cash on deposit at banks is mitigated by the high credit
ratings assigned by to these counterparties by international credit rating agencies.

Undertaking financing activities with affiliates of the Company's ultimate holding company may expose
the Company to collection risk and/or cash flow interest rate risk. The Company believes that the
caollection risk associated with amounts due from affifates of the Company's ultimate holding company is
low glven that the counterparties are sufficiently capitalized and due to the financiat support which all
affiiates may recalve from the uitimate parent company. In addition, since the intarest-bearing liabilities of
the Campany carry a fixed annual coupon interest rate of 1.00% and a yleld of 8.5% have been issued 1o
related parties, the Company considers the financing risk posed by these financial instruments to be low.

Events After the Balancae Sheet Date

The Company has evaluated the impact of subsequent events through the date the consolidated financlal
statemants were made available o be issued. Evenis after the balance sheet dale are disclosed in Nolte
29,

Outlook

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. will continue operating into fulure periods as a dislributorship.
The Company will no fonger have subsidiaries or distribute products out of the Argon Medical Devices
Switzeriand SA location. For the continuing business, no significant investments in opening additional
offices or hiring additional sales, marketing, and supply chaln employees are ant In the tpcoming
year anding December 31, 2017 as tha Company believes that its establishga-hfrasinicture will permit the
Company to achieve its profitabiiity targets. R

Oregattently ., S ',

Sharon McNally Gregory Di Stefano Robert Jenkins

Director Director ; Director

[Threugh March 20, 2017) [inception March 21, 2017] [Inception March 21, 2017}
June 21, 2017 June 21, 2017 June 21, 2017




Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) and Comprehensive income (Loss)

December 31, 2016 and 2015

famounts presentad in Euro (€} unless otherwise staled)

Net sales {Note 6)
Cost of sales (Note 7)

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 8,9,10,11)
Opersting profit

Interest expense, net (Note 12)
Foreign currency losses

Loss before taxation
Income taxes {Note 14)

Total net [oss for the year from conlinuing operations
Discontinued operations (Note 2)

Income {foss) after taxation from discontinued operations
Total income (loss) after taxation for the year

Other comprehensive income (loss) from discontinued operations
Foreign currency translation adjustments from discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income {loss) for the year from discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

2016 2015
€ 18636388 € 19,534,568
12,437,660 12,910,153
6,198,708 6,624,415
6,199,714 6,198,384
(1,006) 426,031
876,324 516,599
567,975 1,462,434
(1,445,305) {1,553,002)
17,738 184,884

€ (1,483,043)

€ (1,737,886)

13,918,623 7,692,073

€ (15,301,066) & 5,054,187
185,108 1,008,782

€ (13,733,715} € 0,690,855
€ (15,196,758) € 7,952,969

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unfess otherwise stated) 2016 2015
Assets
Noncuirent assels
Property and equipment, net (Note 15) € 8486 € 46,614
[ntangible assets, net (Mote 16) - 8,643,729
Goodwill (Note 16} - 12,639,986
B,486 21,332,329
Current assels
Inventories {Note 17} 4,065,714 7,004,335
Trade receivables {Note 18) 2,898,136 7,024,675
Receivables due from related parties (Note 28) 208,566 46,000
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 19) 323,465 159,347
Indirect taxes receivable (Note 20} 253,625 90,818
income taxes receivable (Note 14) 408,935 199,193
Cash at banks {Note 21) 1,398,739 4,743,693
9,557,180 19,268,061
Assets held for sale (Nole 2) 15,850,352 -
Total current assets 25,407 532 19,268,061
Total assels € 25416,018 € 40,600,390

Equity and Liabilities
Equity atiributable to owner of the company

Share capital (Note 22) € 18,000 € 18,000
Share premium {Nole 22) 10,567,008 10,567,008

Accumulated other comprehensive income - foreign
currency franslation adjustment 2,183,890 1,098,782
Accumulated earnings {less} (B.404666) € 6,887,200
Total equity 4,274,232 19,470,990

Noncurrent liabilities
Related party promissory note (Note 26) 12,256,245 10,592,188
Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 14) - 2,083,681
12,256,245 12,675,867
Current liabilities

Payables due to relaled parties {(Note 26) 2,036,928 5,121,055
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 25) . 1,450,208 2,222,566
Indirect taxes payable (Note 20) : 335421 604,107
Income tax payable (Note 14) 248,556 505,805
: 4,071,113 8,453,533
liabilities held for sale (Note 2) : 4,814.429 .
Tolal current hiabilities 8,885,542 8,453,533
Total liabilities € 21,141,787 € 21,129,400
Total equity and liabilities '3 25416019 € 40,600,390

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Years Ended Decernber 31, 2016 and 2015

Aftributable ¢o Owner of the Company

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Incoma {Loss)
Foreign
CusTency
Transtath Accurtatas

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated) Share Capital Shara Preml Adjusiment Earning! Tetal Equity
Balances at Jsnuary {, 2015 € 8000 € 10,147,358 € - 933013 € 11,088,371
Related party promissory hote discount - 419,650 - . 419,650
Comprehensive income - - To. 5,084,187 5,954,187
Foreign cumancy lanslalion adjusiment gain - -~ 1.598,782 - 1,995,782
Baiantes at December 31, 2015 € 18000 € 10,567,008 € 1998762 567,200 € 15,470,800
Balgncees at January 1, 204& € 18000 € 10567008 € 1,888,782 6,887,200 € 19,470,990
Comprehensive loss . - - {15,381,855) {15,381,856)
Foreign currency transtation adjustment gain - - 186,108 - 185,108
Balances at December 31, 2016 € 18,000 € 10,567,008 € 2,183,890 {8,404,666) € 4,274,232

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities

Income (loss) before taxation € (1445304) €  (1,553,002)

Adjustments for
Depreciation {Nate 15) 6,077 5,518
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 11, 16) - -
Amertization of promissory note debt discount 284,883 516,599
Gain on write off of payable to an affiliated company (Note 13) - -
Provision for impairment of trade receivables {(Note 18) {22,819) 61,010
Provision for excess and obsolete inventorias (Note 17} {33,203) 158,965

Loss on discontinued operalions - -
Changes in working capitat components, net of acquisitions

Trade receivables {(Note 18} 736,418 (780,262)
Due toffrom related parties, net (Note 26) 173,219 4,539,655
Inventories {Note 17) (7,922) {1,468,613)
Indirect taxes, net {Note 20) {172,430) (8.592)
Prepaid expenses (Note 19) (194,990) 17,782
Accounts payatie and accrued expenses (Note 25) 255,218 25,737
Cash used in operations (420,855) 1,504,782
Income taxes paid (Note 14) (510,469) {7,622}
Cash paid for interest - {89,060)
Net cash used in operating activities {931,324) 1,408,110
Cash ftows from investing actlvities
Purchases of property and equipment (Note 15) {1,259) (16,213)
Net cash used in investing activities {1,259) {16,213)
Net decrease in cash (932,583) 1,391,897
Cash
Beginning of year 2,331,325 939,428
End of year € 1398742 € 2331325

Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and
financing activities
Conversion of short-term payable ta long term note payable
due to an affiliated company (Note 22) € - € 2,481,250

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

1.

General Information

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries {collectively the “Company”) was
incorporated on December 20, 2010 and maintains a registered office in Amsterdam, the
Netherlands. The registered office is located at Prins Bernhardplein 200, 1097 JB Amsterdam, the
Netherlands.

In addition to its registered office in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, the Company has established
branch offices in Belgium, Denmark, Finfand, Germany, and Sweden, and has representatives in
France, Greece, and the United Kingdom. The Company is wholly owned by Argon Medical
Devices Singapore Pte. Ltd., a Singapore Corporation, which the Company regards as its
intermediate holding company. After the acquisition of Interventional Products Business in 2014,
the Company's group operating structure also includes Argon Medical Devices S.L. (fik/a
Angiotech S.L.), a Spanish legal entity, Argon Medical Devices GmbH (f/k/a Angiotech GmbH), a
German legal entity, Argon Medical Devices SARL (fi/a Angiotech SARL), a French lega! entity,
and Argon Medical Devices Switzerfand SA (fk/a Angiotech Switzerland SA), a Swiss legal entity.

The Company's ultimate holding company is Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc., a United States
Corporation. The Compahy's uitimate holding company is majerity-owned by RoundTable
Healthcare Partners, LP, RoundTable Healthcare Partners |l, LP, RoundTable Healthcare
Pariners 11, LP, RoundTable Healthcare Investors, LP, and RoundTable Healthcare

Investors I, LP, and RoundTabie Healthcare Investors 1Il, LP (collectively refemred to as
“RoundTable™).

The Company distributes single-use vascular-access medical devices, biopsy devices, blood
pressure monitoring devices, central venous, pulmonary artery and extended dwell catheters to
hospital cardiac catheterization laboratories, interventionaf radiology laboratories and critical care
units. The Company's products are sold throughout Europe, the Middle East and Africa through a
combination of direct sales representatives and premier distributors.

Discontinued Operation

Description

On December 31, 2016 the Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. agreed upon the divestiture to
Argon Medical Devices, Inc., an affiliated entity under common contro! of the Company's ultimate
parent company, ane-hundred percent (100%) of the issued share capital of Argon Medical
Devices Switzerland SA, including its subsidiaries Argon GmbH, Argon France, Argon SARL and
Argon Medical Devices Danmark ApS and its branches of Finland Branch, Norway Branch, and
Sweden. The associated assets and liabilities were consequently presented as held for sale in the
2016 financial statements.

Argon Switzerland was sold on January 30, 2017 and is reporied in the current period as
discontinued operation. Financial information relating to the discontinued operations for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are set out below.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro {€) unless otherwise stated)

Financial performance and cash flow information

The financial performance and cash flow information presented is for the year ended December 31,

2015 and 2015,

Net sales
Cast of sales

ross profit frem disconbnued operations
Selling, general and administralive expenses

Operating profit {loss) from disconlinued cperalions
Interast expense {income}, net
Foreign cumrency losses (gains)

Tolal finance losses (gains) from discontnued operations
Gain on write off of payable lo an affiliated company

Income before taxation from discontinued operations
income tax expense (benefit)

Income afler taxalion from discontinued operalions
Lass an {he sale of the subsidiary after income tax

Total income (lass) for the year from discontinued operations
Qlher comprehensive income (loss) from discontinued operations

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Tatal comprehensive incarme {lass) far the year fram discontinued operatians

Nel cash inflow outflow from operating aclivilies
Net cash outflow from investing acliviies

Net cash outflow from financing activilies

Net dacrease in cash generated by the subsidiary

12

2018 2015

€ 22784170 € 22,505,328
15.965,120 16,613,931
5,819,050 5,801,357
6732 885 6,142,963
586,165 (251,566)
{141,007 23T
244 116 @07.797).
103,700 185,418)

- 7859426

282,456 7,703,278
{29,851} 11,206
512,407 7,692,072
(14,431,230) -
(13,§18,823) 7,692,072
185,108 1,008 782
3.033.116) 9,530,854
€ (157,248) € (1,960,467}
(30,221} (19,062}

£ _ {187,469}

€ (1,970,529)
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

Detajls of the sale of the subsidiary
The following assets and liabilities were reclassified as held for sale in relation to the discontinued
operation as at December 31, 2016:

Assetls 2016
Noncurrent assets
Property and equipment, net € 41,576
Intangible assets, net 7,727,965
Goodwili 12,749,618
Impairment of long loved assets due to disposal (14,431,230)
Total non-current assets held for sale 6,087,929
Current assets
Inventories 2,304,708
Trade receivables 4,636,996
Recelvables due from related parties 325,480
Deferred income tax asset -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 178,066
Indirect taxes receivable 7,977
income taxes receivable 75,137
Cash at banks 2,234,059
Total current assets held for sale 9,762,423
Tolal assets held for sale € 15,850,352
Noncurrent liabilities
Related party promissary note (869,439)
Deferred income tax ligbilities 1,523,158
Total non-current liahilities held for sale 853,719
Liabilities

Current liabililies
Payables due {o related parties -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,248,178

Indirect taxes payable 387,336
Income tax payable ’ 2,325,196
Total current fiabilities held for sale 3,960,710
Total Eabilities held for sale € 4814428
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

At year end, the fair value was determined to be €8,852,033. This amount is equal ta the
consideration transferred as part of the sale. The consideration was transferred through Argon
Switzerland's assumption of a portion of the Company's existing debt to PBN Medical Danmark
A/S. The carrying amount of assets sold consisted of operating assets of €4,635,100, goodwill of
€12,749,618, intangible assets of €7,727,965, and cumulative translation losses of €2,183,890. In
total the net assets of the disposal group exceeded the fair value by €14,431,230 resulting in a net
loss on the sale which is presented in discentinued operations, see analysis above.

Fair value of net assets sold € 8,852,033
Carrying amount of net assets sold 23,283,263
Loss on held for sale assets and liabilities € (14,431,230)

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and under the
historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies, which have been consistently applied,
are set out below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.

Operating Structure

The Company’s operating structure includes Argon Medical Devices Netheriands B.V., a Dutch
entity, branch offices of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. in Belgium, Denmark, Finland,
Germany, and Sweden, and representatives of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. operating
in France, Greece, and the United Kingdom which were formed and existed prior to December 31,
2011. After the acquisition of Interventional Products Business, the Company's group operating
structure afso Includes Argon Medical Devices S.L. (f/kfa Angiotech S.L.}, a Spanish legal entity,
Argon Medical Devices GmbH (ffk/a Angiotech GmbH), a German legal entity, Argon Medical
Devices SARL (flk/a Angiotech SARL), a French legal entily, and Argon Medical Devices
Switzerland SA (f/k/a Anglotech Switzerfand SA), a Swiss legal entity.

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has control. The Company controls an entity
when the Company is exposed (o, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is fransferred to the Company. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Company applies the acquisition method to account for business combinalions. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

fransferred, the Habilities incurred to the former owners of the acguiree and the equity interests
issued by the Company. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. |dentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisitioni-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any non-caontrolling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Inter-company
tfransactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between the Company and
its subsidjaries are eliminated. When necessary amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform to the Company's accounting policies.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Argon Medical Devices
Netherlands B.V. and its wholly owned subsidiaries: Argon Medical Devices S.L. (ffi/a Angiotech
§.L.), a Spanish legal entity, Argon Medical Devices GmbH {flk/a Angiotech GmbH), a German
legal entity, Argon Medical Devices SARL (ifk/a Angiotech SARL), a French legal entity, and Argon
Medical Devices Switzerland SA (f/k/a Angiotech Switzerland SA}, a Swiss legal entity.

The Company’s consclidated financial statements include the results of operations and balance
sheets of its wholly owned subsidiaries and branch offices. Intra-company transactions, balances,
income and expenses on transactions between the Company, its wholly owned subsidiaries and
branch offices, and income and expenses from intra-<company transactions that are recognized in
assets, if any, are eliminated.

New Standards and Interpretations not yet Adopted

The Company has applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements all the
standards and interpretations of the IFRS, as adopted by the EU, that are effective at the date of
these consolidated financial statements, A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after December 31, 20186,
and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these is
expected to have a significant effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements,

+ IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and
October 2010. 1t replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categories: those méasured as at fair value and those measured at amortized
cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the
entity's business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the |AS
39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for
financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded
in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unfess this creates an
accounting mismatch. The Company does not anticipate any impact to the financial
statements as a result of this accounting standard. The standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or afier January 1, 2018 and earlier application is permitted. Based on the
transitional provisions in the completed IFRS 9, early adoption in phases was only permitted for
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 20186 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

annual reporting periods beginning before 1 February 2015, After that date, the new rules
must be adopled in their entirety. The Company is assessing the impact of IFRS 15, if any.

* |FRS 15, 'Revenue from contracts with customers' deals with revenue recognition and
establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity's
contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains controf of a good
or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or
service. The standard replaces [AS 18 ‘Revenue’ and 1AS 11 '‘Construction contracts' and
related interpretations. The standard is effective for annua! periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018 and earlier application is permitted. The Company is assessing the impact of
IFRS 15, ifany.

« IFRS 16, IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the
recognition of alimost all leases on balance sheet. The standard removes the current distinction
between opsrating and financing leases and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liabllity to pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts. An
optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The income statement will also
be affected because the total expense is typically higher in the earlier years of a lease and
lower in fater years. Additionally, operating expense will be replaced with interest and
depreciation, so key metrics like EBITDA will change. Operating cash flows will be higher as
cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liability are classified within financing
activities. Only the part of the payments that reflects interest can continue to be presented as
operating cash flows. The Company is assessing the impact of IFRS 186, if any.

s IAS 27, The IASB has made amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements which will
allow entities to use the equity method in their separate financial statements to measure
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. IAS 27 currently allows entities to
measure their investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates either at cost or as a
financial asset in their separate financial statements. The amendments introduce the equity
method as a third option. The election can be made independently for each category of
investment (subsidiaries, joint ventures and assaociates). Entities wishing to change to the
equity method must do so retrospectively. The Company is assessing the impact of VAS 27, if
any.

s |AS8 7, Going forward, entities will be required to explain changes in their liabilities arising from
financing activities. This includes changes arising from cash flows (eg drawdowns and )
repayments of borrowings) and non-cash changes such as acquisitions, disposals, accretion of
interest and unrealised exchange differences. The Company is assessing the impact of IAS 7,
if any.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effeclive that would be expected
to have a material impact on the Company upon adoption.

Foreign Currency Translation

ltems included in the Company's consolidated financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro (€}, the Company's
functional and presentation currency. Each of the Company's subsidiaries was also determined to
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless ctherwise stateq)

have a functiona! currency of the Euro (€) since the primary economic environment in which these
entities operate uses the Euro (€) as the predominant local currency.

The Company has operations in several countries where their local currencies are different than
their functional currency. Adjustments resuiting from the process of transiating local currency
financia! statement into the functional currency of the Euro (€) are included in accumulated other
comprehensive income (foss) in stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency transactions of the
Company and its subsidiaries which are denominated in currencies other than the Company’s
functional currency are translated into the Company's functional and presentation currency for
financial reporting purposes. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the re-
measurement of foreign currency transactions denominated in currencies other than the
Company’s functional currency at the reporting date and the settlement of such transactions are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Comprehensive income (Loss)

Other than the adjustments to translate local currency financial statement into the function currency
of the Euro (€) as part of the Company's cumulative translation adjustment, the Company has no
transactions that need to be presented in other comprehensive income (loss) or accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss). Accordingly, no transactions are expected to be recycled from
accumutated ather income (loss} through the Company's consolidated statement of income in the
upcoming fiscal year.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the property and equipment.
Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow 1o the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statements of comprehensive income during the period in which
they are incurred. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method, assuming no residual
value, over the assets’ estimated useful lives, or the life of the underlying lease, whichever is
shorter, as follows:

Estimated
Useful Lives
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Computer hardware 3 years
Computer software 3-5 years

When assets are refired or sold, the net carrying amount is eliminated with any gain or loss on
disposal recognized in the pericd of disposal and classified within selling, general and
administrative expenses in the Company's consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(loss).

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Company's interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

Far the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, goodwiil acquired in a business combination is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units ("CGUs") that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each CGU to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use is calculated using the discounted cash flow model. Any impairment is
recognized immediately as an expense and is not subsequentiy reversed.

Operating segments are reported in accordance with internally reported information to the chief
operating decision-maker. The Executive Board is regarded as the chief operating decision-maker
responsible for the allocation of funds to and the assessment of the operating segments.

The company monitors results by product line. Al product lines are grouped together ana
segment basis which comprise one cash generating unit. Disclosure on the operaling segment is in
keeping with this grouping, with the cash generating unit benefiting from the business combination
that gave rise to the goodwill.

intangible Assets, Net

Intangible assets consist of falr values assigned to customer relationships, proprietary technology
and know-how, patents, and trade-names, arising from the acquisition of Interventional business in
2014 which have been grouped into the prinelpal product lines (Vascular & Biopsy) which were
acquired in that acquisition. These intangible assets have definite lives and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization in the Company's consalidated balance sheels. Amorlization is
caleulated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of these intangible assets over their
estimated useful lives of eight (8) to twelve {12) years assuming no residual value.

impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amoriization, such as property and equipment and
definite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s camying amount exceeds its recoverabie amount,
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash fiows (cash-generating units). There have been no nanfinancial
assets of the continuing business that have suffered from impairment for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, iess dispesal costs. The Company evaluates inventory levels and expected
usage on a periodic basis and records valuation allowances as required. Substantially alf
inventories are purchased from related parties as further discussed in Note 25.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

Trade Receivables

Trade receivabies represent amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in ane year or less trade
receivables are classified as current assets. If not, trade receivables are presented as noncurrent
assets. Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

The provision for impairment is recorded based upon the Company's estimate of credit losses
included in accounts receivable considering historica! [osses on trade receivables and a specific
review all accounts whose aging is nearing or has exceeded credit terms. Account balances are
charged against the provision for impatrment when it is determined they will not be collected.
The Company records a provision for customer returns and customer discounts at the time of
product shipment based upon the Company’s historical experience with customer rebates and
discounts.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Costs incurred which the Company expects will henefit multiple periods are capitalized as prepaid
expenses. These costs are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income (loss) over the
period in which the Company benefits from the expenditure using a method that reflects the pattern
in which the Company benefits from the expenditure.

Other current assets consist mostly of other nontrade receivables which the Company expects to
collect within twelve (12) months from the balance sheet date.

Indirect Taxes

indirect taxes are added to goods or services when they are purchased (indirect tax receivabie)
and when they are sold (indirect tax payable). The Company recognizes indirect taxes owed to
and owed from taxing authorities in each country in which it conducts transactions subject to these
taxes and remits payments on a timely basis to the taxing authorities in each country.

Cash at Banks
Amounts presented as cash at bank include only cash at call with banks.

Share Capital and Share Premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity contributions made by the Company's shareholder
in excess of the par vajue of the Company's shares are classified as share premium in

the Company's consolidated balance sheets.

Related Party Promissory Note

Related party borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently camied at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs incurred) and the redemption value is recognized in the Company's statements of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the effective inferest method.

Due to the related party nature of the Company’s outstanding borrowings, no transaction costs or
other direct fees were incurred regarding the establishment of the promissory note.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes te Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) uniless otherwise stafed)

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assels, if any, is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitaiization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable and accrued
expenses are classified as current liabilities it payment is due within one year or less {or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as noncurrent liabilities.
None of the Company's accounts payable or accrued expenses include a provision for interest to
be charged on outstanding amounts.

Due to/from Related Parties

Amounts due to and due from related parties have arisen as a result of the related party
transactions described in Note 26. Amounts due to and due from related parties are classified as
current if payment is due within one year or less. If not, amounts due fo and due from related
parties are presented as noncurrent. Amounts due to and due from related are recognized initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Employee Benefits
The Company does not directly sponsor any defined benefit pension plans or other post-retirement
benefit plans.

The Company participates in defined contribution benefit plans in multiple countries which are
administered by either the government or a third-party administrator depending on the territory. For
these defined contribution benefit plans, once the Company has made its contribution, which can
be either voluntary, mandatory, or a combination depending on the country, the Company has no
further obligation to fund the defined contribution benefit plan. Obligations to contribute to defined
contribution benefit plans are recognized as incurred which is geperally when an employee renders
services that entitle them to the related contribution. )

At the discretion of the Company's management, bonuses may be paid to the Company’s
employees. The Company recognizes a liability and the expense for any bonuses expected to be
paid for the current year's performance as incurred which is generally when an employee renders
services that entitle them to the related contribution.

Income Taxes

The income tax expense recognized includes current and deferred income taxes for the period.
Income taxes are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In the case of
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, the associated income taxes
are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax expense recognized is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the halance sheet date in the countries where the Company and
registered branches operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in income tax returns with respect to situations in which the applicable income tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. | establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the income tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabitities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be dtilized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized an deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred income tax
lability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group and it
is probable that the temporary difference wilt nol reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only where there
is an agreement in place that gives the group the ability to cantral the reversal of the temporary
difference not recognized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offsel cumrent tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assels
and liabilities refate to income {axes levied by the same taxing authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receijvable for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and vaiue added faxes.
The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when i
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; when the goods have been
delivered, and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities.

The Company bases its estimate of returns on historical resuits, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Conseclidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€} unless otherwise stated)

The Company's invoices include amounts for shipping and handling costs including postage.
The Company recognizes these hillings as sales and includes the associated costs in selling,
general, and administrative expenses.

Cost of Sales

Cost of goods sold represents the associated cost of inventories sold in sales transactions and is
recorded at the time sales are recognized, Acquired inventories are initially measured at fair value
which can result in an increase or decrease from their historical cost basis which is recognized in
cost of goods sold when the inventories were sold (Note 7).

Royalty Expense
Product royzalties awed to third parties are recognized as expense goods subject to the royalty
arrangements are sold based on the substance of the relevant agreements (Note 10).

Amortization Expense
Amortization expense related to the amortization of definite-lived intangible assets over their
estimated useful lives (Note 11).

Interest Expense, Net
Interest charged on borrowings is recognized in accordance with the terms of the underlying
financial instruments (Note 12}.

Leases

The Company leases certain property and equipment under operating leases. Leases in which a
significant portian of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating ieases. Paymentis made under operating leases {net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the statements of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease,

4. Financial Risk Management

Financial Risk Factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; foreign exchange risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk, and cash flow interest rate risk. The Company's overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Company's financial performance.

Foreign Exchange Risk .
The Company, its registered branches, and wholly owned subsidiaries operate internationally and
conduct transactions in multiple foreign currencies which create various foreign currency exposures
primarily with respect to the United States dolfar, Singapore doltar, British pound sterling, Swedish
krona, and Danish krone, Polish zioty, Swiss franc, and Norwegian krone. The Company does not
hedge these foreign currency exposures and recognizes foreign currency transaction gains and
losses in its statements of comprehensive income.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, various individual balances included in the Company's
balance sheets were denominated in foreign currencies as follows:
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 20116 and 2015

famounts presented in Euro (€] unless otherwise stated)

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalent on deposit with banks as well as credit exposures
to customers such as in the case of outstanding recelvables and committed transactions. Credit
risk on outstanding receivables is managed on a consclidated basis by the Company’s ultimate
holding company and its affiliates in order to mitigate the risk of counterparty default and
concentration. The ultimate holding company and its affiiates manages and analyses the credit
risk for each of the Company’s customers before standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are offered.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparty is a bank with high credit ratings
assigned by internationa! credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financiat asset
in the Company's balance sheet.

Liguidity Risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed on a consclidated basis by the Company's ultimate holding
company and its affiliates which includes manitoring rolling forecasts of liquidity needs to ensure
the Company has sufficient cash to meet its operational needs. As of December 31, 2016, the
Company had €3,632,798 in cash at banks in various territories, The Company believes the
liquidity risk posed by its cash being heid In various teritories is minimal as none of these territories
possesses onerous restrictions on the Company's ability to freely transfer cash to other territories
to meet its liquidity needs. The current liabilities that witl be setfled within one year are €8, 885,541
and €8,453,533 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The cument liabilities that will be
seltled within one year for the continuing business are €4,071,112, exclusive of the accrued loss on
sale of business.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company entered in a promissory note with a
principal balance of $10,002,000 USD (€7,265,463) with Argon Medical Devices, Inc. The
promissory note matures April 12, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1.00% and a 6.5% yield
(payable monthly). The promissory note can be repaid at any time without penalty or premium as
initiated by Argon Medial Devices Netherlands B.V. This related party barrowing is recognized
initially at fair value, net of fransaction costs incurred, and subsequently carried at amortized cost,
The fair value of the promissory note as of Decernber 31, 2016 and 2015 is €8,886,056 and
€8,130,9386,

On December 31, 2015, the Company entered in $3,142,000 USD {€2,880,900) promisscry note
with PBN Medical Devices Denmark A/S (PBN), an affiliate of the Company's ultimate holding
company, which converted its short-term payabie initially recognized in conjunction with the 2014
acquisition of Argon Medical Devices Danmark ApS {o long-term as at 2015. The promissory note
matures December 31, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1.00% (payable annually) and can
be repaid at any time without penalty or premium. This related party borrowing is recognized
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently carried at amortized cost.
The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2016 is €2,700,748. Due to the related
party nature of the Company's outstanding borrowings, no transaction costs or other direct fees
were incurred regarding the establishment of the promissory note.

The table below analyses the Company's non-derivative financial liabilities into maturity groupings
based on contractual maturity dates.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

Interest Nominal Total
Expense on Value Payment Payments on
Promissory on Promissory Promissory
Note Note MNote
2016 € 713,956 € - € 713,956
2017 752,240 - 752,240
2018 353,001 12,499,642 12,853,633

Due to the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities having a contractual maturity of April 12,
2018 and the refated party nature of these obligations, the Company believes these borrowings do
not pose any significant liquidity risk, The effect of a one-percent (1%) increase of decrease in the
interest rate on the Company's financial liabilities would be an decrease or increase to

the Company's profitabilty of approximately (€120,000) and €120,000, respectively, in the
upcoming fiscal year.

Company's profitability due to increases or decreases in interest expense recognized as a result of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates is substantially similar to the effects described in the
preceding section regarding foreign exchange risk and movements in the United States dollar
foreign exchange rate since the Company's interest-bearing debt is denominated in

United States dollar.

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s cash-flow interest rate risk generally arises from its related party promissory note,
This financial instrument has a fixed annual coupon interest rate of 1% and a yield of 6.5%. The
nature of the related party promissory note minimizes the cash-flow interest rate risk posed by this

bomrowing.

The Company has no other significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities. Therefore its income
and operating cash fiows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates and no
sensitivity anzlysis is performed.

Capital Risk Management

The Company’s objectives whenh managing capital are to safeguard the Comnpany’s abllity to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for its shareholder and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an aptimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company's capital structure represents equity attributable to the owner of the Company and
includes issued share capital, share premium, and accumulated earnings.

in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to its shareholder, return capital to its shareholder, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt. Compared to [ast year there have been no significant changes in capital risk

management policies,

Fair Value Estimation
The Company's financial instruments can be classified by which level in the valuation hierarchy, the
irrputs which in their maasurement correspond. The different levels have been defined as follows:
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices).

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,

uncbservable inputs).

The Company's related party promissory note (Note 26) was valued using Level 3 inputs and the
fair value of this financial liability approximates its carrying value as of December 31, 2016, The
fair value of the Company’s other financial insiruments such as accounts receivable, other current
assetls, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate their cammying value due to their
short duration.

The Company's refated party promissory note (Note 26} nor it's other related party balances are
subject to master netting arrangements between different related party entities and have therefore
balances due to and/or due from these different related party entities only been subject to netting
oh an individual legal entity basis,

5. Critical Accounting Estitnates and Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of fulure events that are believed to he reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definiticn, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a materia! adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year include the provision for impairment of trade
receivables and inventory reserves and the evaluation of the recoverability of deferred income tax
assets as described further helow.

The calculation of the provision for impairment of trade receivables relies on historical losses on
trade receivables and a specific review all accounts whose aging is nearing or which have
exceeded credit terms as of the reporting date in order to estimate the necessary provision. Future
losses on trade receivables may be more or less than historical losses and the specific review of
accounts whose aging is nearing or which have exceeded credit terms may not accurately caplure
all uncollectible account balances which may have an impact on the accuracy of the provision for
impairment recorded at the balance sheet date.

The impairment of trade receivables would be an esfimated €10,000 lower or €10,000 higher were
the historical rate used in the analysis to differ by 10% from management’s estimates.

Inventory valuation allowances are recognized based on the estimated net realizable value of
inventories as of the reporting date and net realizable value is comprised of the estimated selling
price of the inventories in the ordinary course of business less disposal costs, The future seliing
prices of inventories and disposat costs may be more or less than the estimated amounts used in
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amountis presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

determining the inventory valuation allowances which may have an impact on the accuracy of the
provision for impairment recorded at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. When future taxable
profits are judged to not exist, valuation allowances against deferred income taxes are recognized
in arder to reduce those deferred income assets to thelr estimated recoverable amount. Within the
next financial year, the Company's estimates of future taxable profits may change which could
impact the Company's assessment of the recoverability of its deferred income tax assets and result
in the release of its valuation allowances recorded against its deferred income tax assets at
December 31, 2016.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas) of expected cash flows to ditfer by 10%
from management's estimates, the group would need to:

s Increase the income tax liability by an estimated €24,000 and the deferred tax liabifity by an
estimated €12,000, if unfavorable; or

e Decrease the income tax liability by estimated €24,000 and the deferred tax liability by an
estimated €12,000, if favorable.

In addition to those estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, the
estimates and assumptions related to intangible assets and goodwill are important to

the Company’s consclidated financial statements.

Estimates related 1o Intangible assets recognized in connection with the Company's acquisition of
the Interventional Products Business were initially recorded at fair vaiue.

The Company tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance with its
accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use cafculations. The principal inputs to these value in-use calculations are
profitability at the legal entity level (which was determined by the Company to be the CGUs for
purposes of conducting these tests), discount rates, and/or market multiples. The accuracy of the
principal inputs used by the Company in its value-in-use calculations has a direct impact on its
calcutation of the recoverable amount of goodwill. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates in Note 16. Per the goodwill impairment analysis performed in the above noted
Note, there was no impairment in 2016,

The analysis demonstrated that it is reasonable possible that a change in the assumptions within
the goodwill impairment analysis would cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable
amount. However, as disclosed in Footnote 3, the full goodwil! balance of Argon Medical Devices
Netheriand B.V. and Subsidiaries is allocated to the disposal group. The value of goodwill is
included in the calcutation of the loss on the asset held for sale that is recognized as of December
31, 2016. Therefore, there is no additional impairment of goodwill that could be recognized in
future periods.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Eura (€) unfess otherwise stated)

The full balance of goodwill of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries was
generated as part of the 2013 acquisition of InterV product lines. The products associated with the
acquisition will no longer sold by the company as pari of the sale of the Argon Medical Devises
Switzerland SA, including its subsidiaries that ccourred within 2017, Therefore, the Company
determined that all goodwill is allocated to the disposal group as disclosed within Note 2.

The Company conducts its business activities in multiple countries across Europe, the Middle East,
and Africa and those business activities and the Company’s multi-jurisdictional structure requires
that the Company, its branch offices, and its wholly owned subsidiaries comply with income tax
laws and regulations in several countries and there may be transactions and balances for which the
uitimate income tax determination is uncertain, Local tax authorities may challenge the Company's
income tax positions and final determinations by those authorities which differ from income: tax
positions taken by the Company may result impact the accuracy of the income tax figures reported
by the Company.

6. Net Saies

Net sales reported for the continuing business for the years ended Degember 31, 2016 and 2015
were generated by the following registered branch offices and legal entity;

2016 2015
Branch
Belgium " € 1,103,802 € 1,184,266
Denmark 1,323,784 1,319,274
Finland 1,563,647 1,309,016
Germany 4,599,978 4,512,817
Sweden 2,106,187 2,158,310
10,697,398 10,573,683
Legal entity
Netherlands (Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.) 7,938,970 8,960,885
7,838,970 8,960,885

€ 18,636,368 € 19,534,568

Net sales to distributors generated by the Company’s representatives in France, Greece, and the
United Kingdom are recognized by the Company’s Netherlands legal entity.

7. Cost of Sales

Cost of goods sold for the continuing business for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
for the continuing business were comprised of €12 437,660 and €12,910,153, respectively, of
inventories that were sold in sales transactions, including impact related to the fair value of
acquired inventories in excess of or less than their historical cost basis.
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8. Seliing, Genera) and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses reported in 2016 and 2015 for the continuing

operations were comprised of the following components:

2016 2015
Employee costs € 2,757,221 2,580,782
Transportation sxpenses 627,533 632,197
Outsourced logistics and administrative services expenses 1,215,506 1,149,657
Auditing and taxation services (indspendent auditor's remuneration) 333,448 297 866
Consulting services 120,482 67,426
Operating ease expenses 278,987 286,226
Royalty expense - 186,032
Travel and enterfainment 265,733 215,978
Commission 297 518 303,367
Meetings and seminars 26,411 103,994
Marketing and advertising expensas 71472 54,185
Communication and information technalogy 19,515 24 360
Office administration 35,850 53,341
Registration 15,480 33,055
Legal services 2,468 -
Depreciation 6,076 5517
Provision for {reversal of provision for) impairment of trade receivables 39,238 99,013
Other expenses 86,976 100,383
Total expenditures - continuing operations € 6,198,714 6,198,384
Independent auditor's remuneration
Audit services .
PwiC Netherlands € 39,000 36,772
Other PwC Offices 116,159 110,425
Sub-tolal 155,159 147,197
Taxation servicas
PwC Netherlands 70,484 75,430
Othar PwC Offices 107,805 75,233
Sub-total 178,289 150,669
Consulting sarvices; Non-Netherlands PwC Offices 120,482 375N
€ 453,930 335,367

The audit and tax fees listed above relate {o the procedures applied to the Company and its

consolidated group entities by the external independent auditor and accounting firm

PricewaternouseCoopers Accountants N.V. as referred to n Section 1, subsection 1 of the Dutch
Accounting Firms Qversight Act (Dutch acronym: Wia). Audit and tax services were all performed

by PricewaterhouseCoopers global network.
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Consutting services relate to advisory services rendered by the Company’s independent auditors to
advise the Company on human resources, payroll, employee benefits arrangements and other
matters and are also performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers global network,

9. Information Regarding Employees

Employee costs for the continuing business for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
were comprised of the following significant components:

2016 2015
Salaries € 1,710,536 & 1,481,364
Pension costs - defined contribution plans 217,055 261,541
Social security costs 461,657 432,857
Bonus 201,495 226,399
Compensated absences 65,033 95,346
Other employee costs 101,445 83,275
Total staff costs - continuing operations € 2757221 € 2580782

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the Company for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was:

2016 2015
Seliing and distribution 25 25
Supply chain 2 2
Finance - -
Total staff - continuing operations 27 27

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the number of persons {including directors) employed by
the Company working in the Netherlands were three (3).

Included in pension costs and social security costs above are the Company's expenses for its
participation in defined contribution benefit plans as well as the cost associated with the Company's
obligation lo make contributions to government-sponsored employee retirement programs in
certain countries.

10. Royalty Expense

Argon Medical Devices, Inc., an affiliate of the Company’s ultimate holding company, has a royalty
arrangement with Rex Medical L.P. (*Rex) that requires the Rex be paid a royalty on global sales of
licensed products based on the profitability of the associated products, The Company offers these
licensed products for sale across Europe, the Middie East, and Africa, and recognizes royalty
expense when these preducts are sold which are paid to affiliates monthly. During the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized €0 and €186,032, respectively, in royalty
expense associated with the sale of these licensed products for the continuing operations. On
December 23, 2015, the Company’s ultimate parent company — Argon Medical Devices Holdings,
Inc. — acquired from Rex the intellectual property and rights to these licensed products,
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11.

12

13,

The Company has a supply arrangement with Argon Medical Devices Biocoatings Corp.

(f/k/a Angictech Biocoatings Corp.), an affiliate of the Company's ultimate holding company, that
requires the Company pay a royalty based on the Company's sale of certain products across
Europe, the Middle East, and Africa, which utilize intellectual property which is cantrolled by the
affiliate. The Company recognizes royalty expense when the licensed products are sold which is
paid to the affiliate monthly. During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company
recognized €174,430 and €167 493, respectively, in royalty expense associated with the sale of
these licensed products. These costs were incurred by Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA and
were included within the eamings for discontinued operations for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 20135,

Amortization Expense

Amortization expense of definite-lived intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015 was approximately €984,078 and €977,868, respectively. The Company estimates
annual amortization expense of definite-lived intangible assets will be approximately €980,000 in
2017, 208, 2018, 2020 and 2021 relafed to its definite-lived intangible assets. The Company's
intangible assets are held by Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA and were considered held for
sale as of December 31, 2016. As such, the related amortization expense were included within the
earnings for discontinued operaticns for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net, for the continuing business for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015 was €876,324 and €516,599, respectively, and arose primary as a result of interest incurred
on related party borrowings (Note 26).

Gain on Write off of Payable to an Affiliated Company

In 2015, ene of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries, Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA,
recognized a gain on write off on its short-term payable to PBN Medicals Danmark A/S, an affiliated
company under common control of the Company's ultimate parent company. This short term
payable was properly cleared a! the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate holding
company upon the acquisition of the Interventional Products Business in 2013, Management made
a decision to write off the short-term payable to follow the approach of its ultimate holding
company. There is not a tax impact of this write off as the transaction was not taxable,

PricevaterhouseCoapers
Arcabntunis NV
For identificaticn

ch porposes only



Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro {€) unless ctherwise stated)

14.

Income Taxes

The Company has a global transfer pricing arrangement. The Company therefore incurs tax
expense (income) with respect to various jurisdictions in which business is conducted. Income tax

expense recognized during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were comprised of the
following significant components:

2016 2095
Current income tax
Current income tax on profiis for the year € 547,795 € 441,080
Total current income tax expense 547,795 441,090
Deferred income tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (560,008) (245,000}
Total deferred income tax benefit {560,009} _{245,000)
Total income tax expense (benefit) € (12,214) € 196,090
Income tax attributable to:
Profit from conitnuing operations 17,738 184,884
Profit from disconitnued operations € (29,952) € 11,206

The income tax expense recognized on the Company's profit before income taxes differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average income tax rate applicable to
profits before income taxes as follows:

2018 2015
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Profit fram continuing operations before income tax expense € (1445305) € (1,553,002)
Profit from discontinuing operation before income tax expense 482,456 7,703,279

€  (362,849) € 6,150,217

Profit before tax muttiplied by weighted average rate of 1.27%

and 3.19% at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively € (319,248) € 66,940
Permanent nondeductible expenses 307,035 128,150
Total current income tax expense € (12,214) € 196,090

The Company's weighted average tax rate of 1.27% and 3.19% at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, differs from the tax rale of 25.00% applicable on taxable profits in excess of €200,000
since the Company's laxable profits up to €200,000 were subject to tax at a lower rate of 20.00%
applicable for entities incatporated in the Netherlands,

There were no income taxes recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity during
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The Company periadically remits paymenls to the tax authorities for its estimated income taxes in
those jurisdictions where the Company has income tax obligations. Paymenis made in excess of
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the Company's income tax obligation for the period are recognized as income taxes receivable and
income tax obligations for the period in excess of payments made are recognized as income taxes
payable. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had income taxes receivables and
payables of €408,935 and €199, 193 respectively, and €248,556 and €505,805, respectively. The
amounts for 2016 were exclusive of assets ar liahilities held for sale.

Components of deferred income {ax assets and deferred income tax liabilities at December 31,
2016 and 2015 are as follows (all deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are

associated with Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA and therefore classified as held for sale as
of December 31, 2016):

2016 2015
Deferred income tax assets
Net operating lossaes € 519,003 € 1,138,033
Total deferred income tax assets 519,903 1,138,033
Deferred income tax liabilities
Intangible assels {1,727,357) (2,083,681}
Total deferred income tax liabilities {1,727,357) (2,083,681)
Valuation allowance (315,704) (1,138,033}
Nei deferred income tax asset (liability) € {1,523,158) € (2,083,681)
The net movement oh the deferred income tax account is as follows:
2016 2015
Net deferrad fncome tax asset (llability) at January 1 € (2083681 € (2,250,001)
Reversal (origination) of temporary differences 356,324 166,320
Net deferred income tax asset (liabllity) at December 31 € (1,727,357 € (2,083681)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and iiabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred Income Tax Assets

2016 2015
Deferred Income tax assets at January 1 € 1,138,033 £ 3,929,874
Reversal of temporary differences (618,130) {2,791,841)
Realize valuation allowance against net operating losses {315,704) -
Deferred Income tax assets at Decembar 31 € 204198 € 1,138,033
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Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

2016 2015
Deferred income tax liabilities at January 1 € (2,083681) € (2,250,001}
Release of Valuation Allowance 204,199 -
Reversal of temporary differences 356,324 166,320
Deferred Income tax liabilitles at December 31 € (1,523,158) € (2,083,681)

In connection with the Interventional Products Business acquisition, the Company assumed the
income tax positions of the acquired entities, including but nat limited to Argon Medical Devices
Switzerland SA (ffida Angiotech Switzerland SA) which had significant historical net operating
losses. These net operating losses were inilially measured at fair value which was determined to
be zero since the likelihood of their reliability in future periods was remote due to the entity's history
of losses and the existence of a local tax holiday that precluded the entity from benefiting from
these net operating losses while the locai tax holiday was in place. Subsequent to the
Interventional Products Business acquisition, the entity applied for a repeal of the tocal tax holiday
and the its profitability forecasts were enhanced due to its participation in the ultimate parent
company's global transfer pricing program which targets that the entity earn profits ranging from
three percent (3%) to five percent (5%) of sales. As of December 31, 2016, the available evidence
did not indicate that it was more likely than not that these net operating losses would be realized in
future periods and therefare the valuation allowance against these deferred income tax assets was
kepl in place, however, it is passible thal the weight of available positive evidence shifts in the next
financial year which would result in a release of the valuation allowance.

15. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, which consists primarily of computer
and software, consists of:

2016 2015
Beginning net book value € 46,614 € 39,215
Cast
Additions 31,480 35,275
Disposal - -
At December 31 78,094 74,490
Depreciation
Charge for the year 28,032 27 876
Qisposal - -
At December 31 28,032 27,876
50,062 46,6814
Less: Property, plant and equipment held for sale (41,576) -
Property, plant and equipment, net € 8,486 € 46,614

PriczwaterhauseCoopers
Actountane NV,
Tar identificaiion

ch purpeses oly



Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unfess otherwise stated)}

16.

Goodwill and intangible Assets, Net

Cost basis, accumulated amonlization, and net book values of goodwill and intangible assets at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of (note all of the Company’s goodwill and intangible assets
were associated with Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA and were therefore considered held

for sale as of December 31, 2016);

Cost Basis

Balances at December 31, 2014
Forelgn exchange changes
Balances at Desember 31, 2016
Fereign exchange changes
Balances at December 31, 2016

Accumulated Amortization

Balances at December 31, 2044

Amortization expense {Nete 11)
Foreign exchange changes

Balances at December 31, 20156

Amortization expense {Note 11)
Foreign exchange changes

Balances at December 34, 2016

Net Book Value

Balances at December 31, 2014

Cost
Accumulated Amortization

Balances at December 31, 2015

Cost
Accumulated Amartization

Balances at December 31, 2016

Vascular Blopsy Totat
Product Produst Intangible
Goodwii! Lirtes Lines Assets
11,455,754 € 722484 € 0640549 € 10,363,033
1,184,232 58,627 880,012 539.639
12,639,986 782,111 10,520,561 11,302,672
109,632 5,907 83,346 89,253
12749618 € 788,018 € 10,603,907 € 11,391,925
Vascular Biopsy Total
Product Product intangible
Goodwll Lines Lines Assets
- € (156,366) € (1,397620) € (1,553,386)
- {(100,761) {877,107} (077,868)
- 2,994 {128,083) {125,089)
- (254,133) {2.402,810) {2,656,943)
- (101,509) (882,569) (984,078)
- {1,797} (21,142) (22,939)
- £ (357439) € (3306521) € (3,563.96D)
Vascular Blopsy Total
Product Product Intanglble
Goodwill Lines Lines Assels
11455754 € 666,118 € 8242920 € 8,809,047
12,630,986 782,111 10,520,581 11,302,672
- (254,133) {2.402,810) {2,656,943)
12,639,986 5274978 8,117,751 8.645,729
12,749.618 788,018 10,603,907 11,381,925
- (357,439) {3,306,521) (3,663,960)
12,749618 € 430579 € 7297386 € 7,727965
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The Company's goodwill arises from the acquisition of Intervention Business Products from
Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc, in 2013. The business which was acquired conducled its
operations principally through legal entities in France, Germany, Spain, Switzeriand and Denmark,
and the goodwill recognized upon acquisition was allocated to these territories as noted below.
These balances are presented in 2013 as a result of the acquisition and the commaon contro)
transaction being recorded using the predecessor method. There were no additions of goodwill in
2016. Note, each of these territories are associated with Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA
and were therefare considered held for sale as of December 31, 2016.

Foreign
Cpening Acquisitions Exchange Ending

Goodwlll Allocation - 2014

France € - £ 444504 € - € 444 504
Germany - 223227 - 223227
Spain - 91,771 - 91,771
Switzerland - 10,583,798 105,868 10,689,666
Denmark - 1,296,686 3,764 1,300 450
Balances at December 31, 2014 € - € 1283098 € 109632 €& 12749618

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been estimated based on value in-use calculations whose
principal inputs are a combination of projections of profitability at the legal entity leve! (which was
determined by the Company to be the cash-generating units (“CGUs") for purposes of conducting
these tests), discount rates, and/or market multiples. As the Company is a distributor, the sum of
the entities creates a single CGU in which goodwill impairment is assessed at.

However, each of the legal entities where goodwill has been allocated — France, Germany, Spain,
Switzerland and Denmark ~ participate in the Company's uitimate holding company's giobal
transfer pricing program which generally targets that entities of the size and complexity of similar to
that of these legal entities eamn profits ranging from three percent (3%} to five percent (5%) which
supersedes all other inputs in terms of significance. The Company’s ultimate holding company has
the discretion to increase these profitability targets in future periods in order to permit the
recoverability of the Company's goodwill or decrease them under certain conditions although no
significant changes are lkely to ocour with the next twelve months.

Consistent with_prior periods, the Executive Board analyzes the results of the Company by product
line. The monthly information reported o the Executive Board, as chief operating decision maker,
is in line with this. Group resuits for the product lines are consalidated and analyzed as a single
segment. The Executive Board bases its decisions on this information.

The value in use of the cash-generating unit resulted in no impairment compared to the canrying
amount as at December 31, 2016 or 2015.

Management has projected cash fiow forecasts over a period of five years. The annual budget is
used as a basis for the projection in the first year whereas key assumptions were applied for the
extrapolation of the results to the period after the second year.
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Management determined compound annual growth rate of 3.4 to 4.9% for the cash-generating unit
covering over the five-year forecast period to be a key assumption. The volume of sales in each
period is the main driver for revenue and costs. The compound annual growth rate is based on
past performance and management's expectations of market development. EBITDA is assumed to
consistently approximate 3.6% of revenue for each projected period in 2016 or 2015, Thisis
consistent with prior periods and the profitability targets by management as discussed above. The
Company has insignificant plant property and equipment; therefore, depreciation related costs are
insignificant to the projections. The weighted average cost of capital is a key assumption within the
analysis and is determined to be 8% by management across the different countries in 2016 and 9%
in 2015, This is consistent with valuations completed by the Company in previous perieds. The
Company considered the weighted average cost of capital in different countries fo address
potential different risk profiles. The Company considered the country specific risk, however
determined that this does not iead 1o any material other outcome of the impairment mode! in 2016
or 20135.

17. inventories

Inventories as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of:

2016 2015
Finished goods € 6907246 € 7,501,039
Less: Excess and cbsolescence provision (536,824) (496,704)
6,370,422 7,004,335
Less: Inventory held for sale (2,304,708) -
lnventories, net € 4065714 € 7004335

Movements in the Company’s excess and obsolescence provision of inventories during the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

At December 31, 2014 € 143,747
Provision for {recovery of provision for) excess and obsolete inventories 614,118
Disposal of previously reserved inventory (261,161)
At December 31, 2015 496,704
Provision for (recovery of provision for} excess and obsolete inveniories 222,057
Disposal of previously reserved inventory - (181,937)
Less inventory held for sale (345,172)
At December 31, 2016 € 181,852
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18. Trade Recelvables

Receivables as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, which are due within one year, consist of;

2016 2015
Trade receivables € 7682056 € 7,119,655
Less: Provision for impairment {146,924) (94,980)
7,535,132 7,024,675
Less: Trade receivables held for sale (4,636,996) -
Trade receivables, net of provisions € 28981368 € 7,024,675

The estimated fair value of the Company’s trade receivables were €2,898,136 and €7,024,675 at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

These past due but not impaired trade receivables relate to a number of independent customers
with no history of default whose aging as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

2016 2015
Performing trade receivables € 6,204974 € 57388739
Past due trade receivables - -
Less than 3 months 1,148,252 1,034,104
3-6 months 225,024 187,900
6-9 months 40,825 22,387
9-12 months - -
More than 12 months 62,981 486,525
Impaired trade receivables (146,924) (94,980)
Trade receivables held for sale (4,636,996) -

€ 28981368 € 7,024,675

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, trade receivables of €146,324 and €84,980, respectively, were
impaired. Receivables considered impaired had aging three months or less. Throughout the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company's estimate of the recoverability of its accounts
recefvable declined based on prevailing factors which led to an increase in the provision for
impairment of trade receivables recorded at December 31, 2016. Actual recoveries of trade
receivahles which were previously considered impaired were not significant during the years ended

December 31, 2016 and 2015.
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At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the carrying amount of the Company's trade receivables
excluding provision for impairment was denominated in the following currencies;

2016
Local
Currency Euro (€)
Euro 3,345,357 € 3,3457358B
Swiss franc 16,269 15,175
British pound stetling 330,568 387,806
Norwegian krone 2,022,851 222,114
Polish 2loty 408,654 92,811
United states dollar 2,973,754 2,826,788
" Danigh krone 2,450,026 329,326
Swedish krona 4,448 421 462,680
Trade receivables held for sale (9,678,699) {4.704,055)
€ 2,978,003
2015
Local
Currency Euro (€)
Euro 2682514 € 2682514
Swiss franc 19,246 17,775
British pound sterling 312,536 424 162
Norwegian krone 2,626,982 262,823
Paolish zloty 4298 403 100,572
United states dollar 3,120,970 2,869,460
Danish krone 2,272,673 304,415
Swedish krona 4,208,212 457,934

€ 7,119,655

Movements in the Company's provision for impairment of trade receivables during the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:
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At December 31, 2014
Accounts receivable write off
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade receivables

At December 31, 2015
Accounts receivable write off

Provision for (recovery of provision for} impairment of trade receivables
Less provision associated with trade receivables held for sale

At December 31, 2016

€ 33,700
(39,789)
101,069

94 980
(31,085)
83,029
(67,058)

€ 70,866

19. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of:
2016 2015
Escrow receivables {payables) € - € {99,912)
Security deposits 119,033 110,145
Other current assets 382,488 149,114
501,531 159,347
Less: Prepaid expenses and other current assets held for sale {178,066} -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets, net € 323,465 € 159,347
Escrow receivables are related to reimbursements due from Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and
affiliates under the terms of the indemnification arrangements related to the acquisition of the
Interventional Products Business.
20, Indirect Taxes

Indirect taxes receivable and indirect taxes payable at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of;

e

“Remirands  Beigwn Derwnars Findand Gamay [T Horway France ~ tpen Puizariand Totel
okt lores ractvabla € 2625 ¢ am e 8902 € 2316 € WO € ABAS: € BgwE1 € 2450 € 2378 € B € DO
ot Iz g3 prgtbie 70,000} {188,078y (108 335} Quam 01,6101 124,258) 120 283} man - a0y
LSS eaped tours hekd fof S : wo.te <541 49925 100391 118450 A 800 _fazen 370350

bt s esnatlo

{pmyanis). net 51625 {1220 79 205) (G821} G1Ery FLIEY-2o - 1796
Jridize] BRes vt 253028 - - - - = prilore)
Inre tie i pyeis L3 » € 13¥. € 10408 € X1 4 21825 € 1858 € - € [3 -k - & 135 43

=18
atheriande  Bagram Bennmk Finlare Germany Theaden Warwsy Fancs Boan Gatirriand Tatd

iNets Lieay ottt € 628% € ;a4 € D30y € 287 £ AL15 & 5162 € inIm € 3885 € ane € S4m & Hase
Indirext lares poyoii LegEh (D1 | (0238 ngepn | GIsAM | @ne) | (R MY edeesn

ndeect Lases reconath

Dhysbin), et 37,65 4304 ¥R 305 0004911 $17,157) (221502 18,185 friktl 2015 5500 511308
tndTaed Loas tecavadke orat 4308 - - - - s S5m ma
bxbredt Lyxes payalis £ Ly 4 L. | ni € lovaiy £ NS £ gwﬂ £ € 211357 € nms g [} £04,107

PricewnterhtuseCoopers
Actountants NV

For demificarian
purposes only

pwe



Argon Medicat Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Etro (€) unless otherwlise stated)

21,

22,

Cash at Banks

Cash at banks at December 31, 2016 and 2015 was located in the following territories:

2016 2015
Netherlands € 523 436 € 411,691
Bealgium 84,054 122,685
Germany 194 204 542228
Swaden 446,148 644,022
Denmark 418,869 839,374
Fintand 293,871 348,008
France 176,024 138,118
Norway 222 179 252,225
Spain 138,435 211,155
Switzerland 1,135,578 1,034,189
€ 3,632,798 € 4,743,693
Less; Cash held for sale 2,234,059 -
Cash at banks € 1,398,730 € 4,743,693
Share Capital and Share Premium
Share Capital
Share capital as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 consists of:
2016 2015
Authorized
90,000 ordinary shares of €1 each € 80,000 € 90,000
Issued and fully paid
18,000 ordinary shares of €1 each € 18,000 € 18,000

As of the Company's date of incarporation, all issued share capital (18,000 ordinary shares) was

fully paid.

Share Premium
Share premium as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 consists of:
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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23.

24,

2016 2015
Authorized € 8487,104 € 8487,104
Related Party Promissory Note Discount 2,079,904 2,079,804
Issued and fully paid € 10,567,008 € 10,567,008

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte. Ltd,, a
Singapore Corporation, which the Company regards as its intermediate holding cornpany,
capitalized the Company with an additional €6,535,224 through a noncash conversion of payables
due to related parties into share premium. This noncash conversion was recognized at the book
value of the payables due to related parties which were effectively settled and cancelled in
connection with the transaction,

Movements in the Company's share capital during the year ended December 31, 2016 were:

Share Share

Capital Premium
At December 31, 2015 £ 18,000 € 10,567,008
At December 31, 2016 € 18,000 € 10,567,008

Stock Option Plan

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the directors of the Company’s ultimate parent
company - Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. - amendad the terms of the Argon Medical Devices
Holding, Inc. 2010 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan’) to aliow participation by non-U.S. based persons.
During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, zero options to purchase shares in Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc., were granted to an employee of the Company. The respective
issuances of units vest over a five year period. The fair value of the stock option plan is accounted
forin line with IFRS 2. The expense related ta vested options are €7,500 and €15,300 for the
years ended Dacember 31, 2016 and 2015. The Company is not directly charged for the
immaterial stock compensation expense of these stock options by Argon Medical Devices
Holding, Inc within the respective petiods. This cost is considered in the transfer pricing and
management expense rate charged to Argon Medical Devices B.V. and Subsidiaries from Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc.

Borrowings

Borrowings as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 consists of:

2016 2015
Loan to Argon Medical Devices, Inc. € 8886058 € 8,130,938
Loan to PBN Medical Denmark A/S 2,700,748 2,461 250
11,586,806 10,592,186
Plus: Loan receivable held for sale 669,439 -
Total borrowings € 12256245 € 10,592,188
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes toc Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2016

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unfess otherwise stated)

On April 12, 2013, the Company entered in $10,002,000 USD (€7,265,463) promissory note with
Argon Medical Devices, Inc., an affiliate of the Company's ultimate holding company. The
promissory note matures April 12, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1.00% and a 6.5% vyield
{payable monthly), and can be repaid at any time without penalty or premium. This related party
borrowing is recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
carmied at amoriized cost. The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2016 and
2015 is €8,866,058 and €8,130,936, respectively. Due to the related party nature of the
Company’s outstanding borrowings, no transaction costs or other direct fees were incurred
regarding the establishment of the promissory note.

On December 31, 2015, the Company entered in $3,142,000 USD (€2,880,200) promissory note
with PBN Medical Devices Denmark A/S (PBN), an affiliate of the Company’s uitimate holding
company, which converted its short-term payable initially recognized in conjunction with the 2014
acquisition of Argon Medical Devices Danmark ApS to long-term as at 2015, The promissory note
matures December 31, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1.00% (payable annually) and can
be repald at any time without penalty or premium. This related party borrowing is recognized
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently carried at amortized cost.
The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2016 is €2,700,748. Due to the related
party nature of the Company's outstanding borrowings, no transacfion cosis or other direct fees
were incurred regarding the establishment of the promissory note.

25. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of:

2016 2015
Accrued outsource services € 354,810 £ 232972
Accounts payable 474 105 310,237
Accrued transportation expenses 193,708 138,630
Accrued professional fees 640,645 640,342
Accrued bonuses 273,807 247,764
Accrued compensated absences 368,454 424,743
Accrued commission 33,518 32,156
Others 350,339 185,722
2,698,386 2,222 566
Less: Accounts payable and accrued expenses held for sale {1,248 178} -
Acrrued expenses, net € 1450,208 € 2222566

26. Related Party Transactions

The foliowing transactions and balances were carried oul with affiliates of the Company's ultimate
holding company, Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc., during the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015 for the continuing operations:

PricevarerhouseCoopers
Actayniantt M.V
For ienuficanon

pwc purpesss only



Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro {€) unless otherwise stated)

2016 2015
Purchases of goods
Argon Medical Devices, Inc. € 373,856 € 594,555
Argon Critical Care Systems Singapore, Pte. Ltd. 11,942,121 13,580,404
Others 67,051 -
Royalty expense
- 186,032

Argon Medical Devices, inc.

Goods bought from affiliates of the Company's uitimate holding company, Argon Medical Devices
Holding, Inc., are bought under a global transfer pricing arrangement which generally targets that
the manufacturer earn profits ranging from cost plus five percent (cost + 5%) to cost plus
seventy-five percent (cost +75%) while allowing the Company o earn profits ranging from three
percent (3%) to five percent (5%) of sales.

Argon Medical Devices, Inc., an affiliate of the Company's ultimate holding company, has a royaity
arrangement with a third party that requires the third party be paid a royalty on global sales of
licensed products based on the profitability of the associated products. The Company offers these
licensed products for sale across Europe, the Middle East, and Africa, and recognizes royalty
expense when these products are sold which are patd to affiliates monthly. During the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized €0 and €186,032, respectively, in royalty
expense associated with the sale of these licensed products for its continuing business.

The Company has a supply arrangement with Argon Medical Devices Biocoatings Corp. (flkfa
Angiotech Biocoatings Corp.), an affiliate of the Company's ultimate holding company, that requires
the Company pay a royalty based on the Company's sale of certain products across Europe, the
Middle East, and Africa, which utilize intellectuaf property which is controlled by the affiliate.

The Company recognizes royalty expense when the licensed products are sold which is paid to
affitiates monthiy. During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized
€174,430 and €167 ,493, respectively, in royalty expense associated with the sale of these licensed
products. These costs were incurred by Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA and were included
within the eamings for discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Additionally, certain employees of the Company's ultimate holding company, Argon Medical
Devices Holding, inc. and its affiliates devote a portion of their time to performing human
resources, |T, payroll, accounts payable, and other functions on behalf of the Company in the
narmal course of business. The Company is not directly charged for these services by Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc. or its affiliates; instead, the cost of these services is one factor,
among many, used to determine the price paid to purchase inventories from affiliates under
the Company's glabal transfer pricing arrangement in place faor ali affiliates of Argan Medical

Devices Holding, Inc.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the following related party receivables and payables were
outstanding:
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts prasented in Euro (€) unjess otherwise stated)

Receivables from related parties

Argon Critical Care Systems Singapore Pte. Ltd.
PBN Medicals Denmark A/S

Argon Medical Devices, inc.

Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Less: Receivablas from related panties held for sale
Tolta! receivables due from related parties

Payables to related parties
Argon Medical Devices, Inc,
Argon Critical Care Systems Singapore Pte. Ltd.
PBN Medicals Denmark A/S
Argon Medical Devices Danmark A/S
Argon Medical Davices SARL
Argon Medical Devices GmbH
Argon Medical Devices S.L.
Argon Medical Devices Biocoatings Corp.
Others
Total payables due to related parties

Loan to refated parties
Argon Medical Devices, Inc.
PBEN Medicals Denmark A/S

Plus: Loan receivable held for sale
Total related party promissory note

2016 2015
€ - € -
; 28,000
516,046 -
18,000 18,000
534,046 45,000
(325,480) .
€ 208586 € 46,000
€ 298347 € 3070637
1,425,386 1,893,701
267,379 -
(112) -

(63)

8

167
30,615 56,717
15,201 -
€ 2036928 € 5121.055
€ B885058 € 8130936
2,700,748 2,461,250
11,586,806 10,562,186
669,439 .
€ 12,956,245 € 10,502,186

Receivables from Argon Medical Devices, Inc. arose mainly as a result of cash collections from
sales transactions in periods prior to January 1, 2012 which was remitted to Argon Medical
Devices, Inc. in lieu of the Company. These receivables were repaid in full during the year ended
December 31, 2016. Proceeds from the repayment of these receivables were used to fund the
Interventional business acquisition and therefore been presented as a financing activity within the

consolidated statements of cash flows.

Receivables due from Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte. Ltd. are for expenditures made by

the Company on its behalf which are reimbursable.

Payables due to Argon Medical Devices, Inc. arise mainly from the purchase of goods, the
obligation to reimburse Argon Medical Devices, Inc. for payments made by Argon Medical
Devices, Inc. direclly to the Company's vendors, and as a result of the royalty arrangement
described above. These payables are generally due two (2) to six (8) months after the date of

purchase, and do not bear interest.
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27.

Payables due to Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte. Ltd arise mainly from the purchase of
goods, are generally due two {2) to six (6) months after the date of purchase, and do not bear
interest.

Payables due to Medical Device Technologies, Inc., PBN Medicals Denmark A/S and Argon
Medical Devices Danmark AfS arise mainly from the purchase of goods. A substantial portion of
these outstanding balances were assumed upon the acquisition of the Interventional Products
Business and is significantly aged. Although these obligations are long past their initial due dates,
the Company intends to settle these obligations in the ordinary course of business using funds
generated from its operations.

Payables due to Argon Medical Devices Biocoatings Carp. arise primarily as a result of the royaity
arrangement described above, are due monthly, and do not bear interest.

During the year ended Decemnber 31, 2013, the Company entered in a promissory note with a
principal balance of $10,002,000 USD (€7,265,453) with Argon Medica)l Devices, Inc. The
promissory note matures April 12, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1.00% and a 6.5% yield
{(payable monthly), and can be repaid at any time without penaity or premium. This related pary
barrowing Is recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incutred, and subsequently
carried at amortized cost. The fait value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2016 and
2015 §s €8,888,058 and €8,130,936, respectively.

On December 31, 2015, the Company entered in $3,142,000 USD (€2,880,900) promissory note
with PBN Medical Devices Denmark A/S {PBN), an affifiate of the Company's ultimate holding
company, which converted its short-term payable initially recognized in conjunction with the 2014
acquisition of Argon Medica! Devices Danmark ApS to long-term as at 2015. The promissory note
matures December 31, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1.00% (payable annualty) and can
be repaid at any time without penalty or premium. This related party borrowing is recognized
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently carried at amortized cost.
The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2016 is €2,700,748. Due to the related
party nature of the Company's outstanding borrowings, no transaction costs or other direct fees
were incurred regarding the establishment of the promissary note.

Management Board

The Company regards its Management Board, as defined by the Company's Articles of
Association, as key management of the Company. During the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, two (2) persons, were represented on the Management Soard. The Dutch citizen on
the Company's Management Board, who is an employee and Director of the Company, received
approximately €129,000 and €114,000 in total remuneration during years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively. The majority of the remuneration noted above was salary and bonus.

The second member of the Company’s Management Board, who is also a director of the Company,
is an employee of an affiliate of the Company’s ultimate holding company, Argon Medical

Devices, Inc. All remuneration paid to this person was bore by that affiliate and none charged to
the Company during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Pricawatertiouseloopers
Arcountants HV.
For idemificuian

purposes only
W



Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts praesented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)
28. Commiiments

Operating Lease Commitmenis

The Company leases office space in various countries throughout Europe and certain equipment
under non-cancelable operating leases which expire at various dates through 2020. Under these
leases, the Company may be liable for certain other costs, including but not limited to, common
area maintenance charges or real estate taxes.

During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, total rent expense under non-cancelable
operating leases was approximately, €278,987 and €286,226, respectively.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as

follows:
2016 2015
Within a year € 855,020 € 481,474
Between two and five years 885,934 1,197,504
More than five years 125,819 251,141
€ 1,866,873 € 1,930,119
Less: LLeases held for sale 1,087,728

€ 768,145 € 1,930,119

28,  Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated the impact of subseguent events through June 21, 2017 the date the
consolidated financial statements were made available to be issued.

The Company restructured its legal entities during the year ending 2016. Prior to this restructuring
the Company's subsidiaries were Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA {"Argon Switzerland"),
Argon Medical Devices Danmark APS (based in Denmark), Argen Medical Devices SARL (based
in France}, Argon Medical Devices S_L. (based in Spain) and Argon Medical Devices GmbH
({based in Germany). The restructuring transferred to Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA
("Argon Switzerland"), one-hundred percent (100%) of the issued share capital of Argon Medical
Devices Danmark APS (based in Denmark}, Argon Medical Devices SARL (based in France), and
Argon Medical Devices GmbH (based in Germany) in exchange for Argon Switzerland’s
assumption of a portion of the Company's existing debt to PBN Medical Danmark A/S. On
January 25, 2017, one-hundred percent {100%) of the issued share capital of Argon Medical
Pevices S.L. (based in Spain) was transferred to Argon Switzerland.

On January 30, 2017, Argon Medical Devices Netherands B.V. sold to Argon Medical Devices,
Inc. an affiliated entity under common control of the Company's ultimate parent company, one-
twndred percent (100%) of the issued share capital of Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA,
including its subsidiaries, for a purchase price of $9,276,596 (€8,733,089). As result of this
transaction, Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. determined that its subsidiaries were held for
sale as of December 31, 2016. An accrual for the loss of the sale of the business has been
calculated and recorded as of Dacember 31, 2016 and the financial statements are presented for
discontinued operations.
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On January 31, 2017, Argon Medical Devices Netheriands B.V.'s ultimate parent company, Argon

Madical Davicas Holding, Inc., sold all iis Interest In the CCS businesses to Merit Medical Systems
inc., a third party business. The CCS business Is comprised of Argon Medical Devices Singapore

Pis. Ltd, Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.'s holding company, and Argon Medical Devices
Japan KK together.

Sharon McNally was a directer of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V, and Subsidiaries
through the balance sheet date of this report of December 31, 2018. As a result of the Janhuary 31,
2017 transaction Sharon was no longer a director of the legal entity. On March 21, 2017 Gregory
Di Stefano and Robert Jenkins becama registered directors of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands
B.V. and Subsidiaries.

The past and present directors, Sharon McNally, Gregory Di Stefano, and Robert Jenkins
authorized the financiat statements to be Issued on the below noted date.

Sharon McNally Gregory Di'Stefano Robarl Jenkins

Director Director Director

[Thraugh March 20, 2017) [inception March 21, 2017} [Inceplion March 21, 2017]
June 21, 2017 June 21, 2017 June 21, 2017
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.

Company Statements of Income
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

Net sales (Nate 2)
Cost of sales (Note 3}

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 4, 5, 6)
Qperating profit

Interest expense, net (Note 7)
Foreign currency losses
Total finance losses

Share of results of subsidiaries (Note 10)
tncome (Loss) before taxation
income taxes {(Note 8)
Total income (loss) after taxation for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2016 2015
€ 18636368 € 19,534,568
12,437 659 12,910,152
6,198,709 6,624,416
6,199,715 6,198,384
(1,008) 426,032
876,324 516,599
567,975 1,462,434
1,444,299 1,979,033
(13,918,823) 7,692,072
(15,364,128) 6,139,071
17,738 184,884
€ (15381,866) € 5954,187
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Company Statements of Financial Position
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro {€) unless otherwise stated)

Assetls

Noncurrent assets
Property and equipment, net (Note 9}
Investment in subsidiaries (Note 10)

Current assets
Inventories (Note 11)
Trade receivables (Note 12)
Receivables due from related parties (Note 20)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 14)
indirect taxes receivable (Note 13)
Income taxes receivable (Note 8)
Cash at bank (Note 15)

Total assets
Equity and Liabitities

Equity attributable to owner of the company
Share capital (Note 16)
Share premium {Note 16)
Accumulated earnings
Total equity
Noncurrent liabilities
Loan due to related parties {Note 18, 20)

Current liabilities
Payables due to related parties {Note 20)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 19)
Indirect taxes payable (Note 13)
Income tax payable (Note 8)
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabililies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2016 2015
€ 8488 € 13,305
8,004,487 25,114,128
9,012,975 25,127,433
4,065,714 4,024,589
2,898,135 3,611,734
18,000 18,000
-323,465 128475
253,626 67,054
408,935 -
1,398,739 2,331,325
9,366,614 10,181,177
€ 18,379,580 € 35308610
€ 18,000 € 18,000
10,719,462 10,719,462
(8,494,667) 6,867,200
2,242,795 17,624,662
12,256,245 10,592,186
1,846,364 5,243,139
1,450,209 1,194,003
335,420 321,278
248,556 332,352
3,880,549 7,001,762
16,136,794 17,683,948
€ 18379589 € 35308610
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.

Company Statements of Changes in Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Attributable to Owner of the Company

Share Share Accumulated Totzl
{amounts presented in Euro (€} unless otherwise stated) Capital Premium Earnings Equity
Balances at January 1, 2018 € 18,000 € 10,147,358 € 833,013 € 11,008371
Related party promissory note discount - §72.104 - 572,104
Comprehensive loss - - 5,854,187 5,954,187
Balances at December 31, 2015 € 18000 € 10713462 € 6867200 € 17,624,662
Balances at January 1, 2016 € 18,000 €& 10719462 € 68087200 € 17,624,662
Comprehansive income - - (15,381,866} (15,361,866}
Balances at December 31, 2016 [3 18,000 € 10719462 € (B 494667) € 2,242,795

The accompanying notes are an integral past of these financial statements.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.,
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless ofherwise stated)
1. General Information

The financial statements of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. are prepared in accordance
with the legal requirement of Part 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. The Company has made use
of the possibility based on Article 362, paragraph 8, Part 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code to
prepare company financial statements based on the accounting policies used for the consolidated
financia! statements.

Subsidiaries of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. are presented using the equity method.
The equity value of subsidiaries comprises the cost of Argon's share in the net assets of the
stubsidiary, plus Argon’s share in income or losses since acquisition, less dividends received.
Goodwill paid upon acquisition of an invesiment in a subsidiary, joint venture or associate is
included in the net equity value of the investment and is not shown separately on the face of the
balance sheet.

2. Net Sales

Net sales reported for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were generated by the
following registered branch offices and legal entity:

2016 2015

Branch
Belgium € 1,103,801 € 1,184,265
Denmark 1,323,784 1,319,274
Finland 1,563,647 1,399,016
Germany 4,500,978 4,512,817
Sweden 2,106,187 2,158,310

10,697,387 10,573,682
Legal entity
Netherlands (Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.) 7,938,971 B,960,886

€ 18,636,368 € 19,534,568

Net sales to distributors generated by the Company's representatives in France, Greece, and the
United Kingdom are recognized by the Company's Netherlands legal entity.

3. Cost of Sales

Cost of goods sold for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were comprised of
€12,437,659 and €12,910,152, respectively, of inventories that were sold in sales transactions.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

famounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)
4, Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses reported in 2016 and 2015 were comprised of the
following components:

2016 2015
Employee costs € 27571221 € 2,560,782
Transportation expenses 627,533 632,197
Outsourced logistics and administrative services expenses 1,215,506 1,149,657
Auditing and taxation services (independent auditor's remuneration) 333,448 297 B66
Consulting services 120,482 67,426
Operating lease expenses 278987 286,226
Royzalty expense - 186,032
Travel and entertainment 265,733 215,97¢
Commission 297 518 303,367
Meetings and seminars 26411 103,998
Marketing and advertising expenses 71472 54,185
Communication and information technology 19,515 24,360
Office administration 35650 58,341
Registration 15,482 33,055
Legal services 2,468 -
Depreciation 6,076 T 5517
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 39,238 99,013
Other expenses 86,975 100,383

€ 6,189,715 € 6,198,384

Independent auditor's remuneration
Audit services

PwC Netherlands € 39,000 € 36,772
Other PwGC Offices 116,159 110,425
Sub-total 155,159 147,197

Taxation services
PwC Netherfands 70,484 75,430
Other PwC Offices 107,805 75,239
Sub-total 178,288 150,669
Consulting services: Non-Netherands PwC Offices - 120,482 37,601

€ 453,930 € 335,367

The audit and tax fees listed above refate to the procedures applied to the Company and its
congolidated group entities by the external independent auditor and accaunting firm
PricewaterhouseCoopers as referred to in Section 1, subsection 1 of the Dutch Accounting Firms
Oversight Act (Dutch acronym: Wta). Audit and tax services were all performed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers global network.

Consulting services relate to advisory services rendered by the Company’s independent auditors to
advise the Company on human resources, payroll, employee benefits arrangements and other
matters and are also performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers global network.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

5.

Information Regarding Employees

Employee costs for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were comprised of the following
significant components:

2016 2015
Salaries € 1,710536 € 1,481,364
Pension costs - defined contribution plans 217,056 261,541
Social security costs 461,657 432,857
Bonus 201,495 226,399
Compensated absences 65,033 - 95,346 -
Other employee costs 101,444 83,275

€ 2757221 € 2,580,782

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the Company for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was:

2016 2015
Selling and distribution 25 25
Supply chain 2 2
27 27

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the number of persons (including the director} employed by
the Company working in the Netherlands were three (3).

Included in pension costs and soclal security costs above are the Company's expenses for its
participation in defined contribution benefit plans as well as the cost assaciated with the Company’s
obligation to make contributions to governmant-sponsored employee retirement programs in
certain countries.

Royalty Expense

Argon Medical Devices, Inc., an affitiate of the Company’s ultimate holding company, has a royalty
arrangement with a third party that requires the third party be paid a royalty on global sales of -
licensed products based on the profitability of the associated produects. The Company offers these
licensed products for sale across Europe, the Middle East, and Africa, and recognizes royalty
expense when these products are sald which are paid to affiiates monthly. During the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized €0 and €186,032, respectively, in royalty
expense associated with the sale of these licensed producsts. On December 23, 2015, the
Company's ultimate parent company Argon Medical Devices Holdings, Inc. acquired from Rex the
intellectual property and rights to these licensed products.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

7. interest Expense, Net
Interest expense, net, for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, was €876,324 and
€516,599, respectively, and arose primary as a result of interest incurred on related party
borrowings (Note 20).

8. Income Taxes

Income tax expense recognized during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were
comprised of the foliowing significant components:

2016 2015
Current income tax e )
Current income tax on profits for the year € 17,738 "€ - 184,884
Total current income tax 17,738 184,864 .
Total income tax expense € 17,738 € 184,884

The income tax expense recognized on the Company’s profit before income taxes differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average income tax rate applicable to
profits before income taxes as follows:

2016 2015
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Profit before tax multiplied by weighted average rate of -1.23%
and 3.16% at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively € (303,559) € 55,734
Permanent nondeductihle expenses 321,297 129,150
Total current income tax expense € 17,738 € 184,884

The Company’s weighled average tax rate of -1.23% and 3.16% at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, differs from the tax rate of 25.00% applicable on taxable profits in excess of €200,000
since the Company’s taxable profits up to €200,000 were subject to tax at a lower rate of 20.00%
applicable for entities incorporated in the Netherlands.

There were no income taxes recognized in other comprehensive income of directly in equity during
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The Company periodically remits payments to the tax authorities for its estimated income taxes in
those jurisdictions where the Company has income tax obiigations. Payments made in excess of
the Company's income tax obligation for the period are recognized as income taxes receivable and
income tax obligations for the period in excess of payments made are recognized as income taxes
payable. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had incorne taxes receivables of
€408,935 and €0 and income taxes payables of €248,556 and €332,352, respectivealy.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€} unless otherwise stated)

9,

10.

11.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, which consists primarily of computer
and sofiware, consists of;

2016 2015
Beginning net book value € 13,3056 € 2,609
Cost
Additions 1,259 16,213
Disposal - -
At December 31 14,564 18,822
Depreciation
Charge for the year 6,076 5,517
Disposal - .
At December 31 6,076 5,517
Net book value € 8488 € 13,305

Investment in Subsidiaries

Movements in the Company's investment in subsidiaries during the year ended December 31,
2016 were:

At December 31, 2014 € 17,422,056
Share of results of subsidiaries 7,692,072
At December 31, 2015 25,114,128
Dividends received {(2,180,818)
Share of results of subsidiaries (13,918,823}
At December 31, 2016 € 9,004,487
Inventories

Inventories as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of:

2016 2015
Finished goods € 4,257,708 € 4249767
Less: Excess and obsolescence provision {191,995) (225,198}

€ 4065714 € 4,024,589
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€} unless otherwise stated)

12.

Movements in the Company's excess and obsolescence provision of inventories during the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

At December 31, 2014 € 66,233
Provision for {recovery of provision for) excass and obsolefe inventories 228,956
Inventory scrap (69,991)
At December 31, 2015 225,198
Provision for {recovery of provision for) excess and obsolete inventaries (33,203)
inverntory scrap -
At Deeember 31, 2016 € 191,995

Trade Receivables

Receivables as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, which are due within ane year, consist of:

2016 2015
Trade receivables & 2978000 € 3,714419
Less: Provision for impairment _{79,8665) {102,685)
Trade recejvables, net of provisions € 2898135 € 3,611,734

The estimated fair value of the Company’s trade receivables were €2,898,135 and €3,611,734 at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

These past due but not impaired trade receivables relate to a number of independent customers
with no history of default whose aging as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

2016 2015
Performing trade receivables € 2,360,284 € 2,970,960
Past due trade receivables - -
Less than 3 menths 426,414 533,172
3-6 months 150,468 187,900
6-9 months 40,825 22,387
9-12 months - -
Mare than 12 months - -
impaired trade receivables (79,866} {102,685)

€ 2,898,135 € 3611734
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.

Notes to Company Financijal Statements

December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, trade receivables of €79,866 and €102,685, respectively, were
impaired. Recelvables considered impaired had aging three months or less. Throughout the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company's estimate of the recoverabitity of its accounts
receivable improved based on prevailing factors which led to a decrease in the provision for
impairment of trade receivables recorded at December 31, 2016 as described below. Actyal
recoveries of trade receivables which were previously considered impaired were not significant

during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the carrying amount of the Company's trade receivables
excluding provision for impairment was denominated in the following currencies:

Euro

Swiss franc

British pound stetling
Norwegian krone
Polish zioty

United states doliar
Danish krone
Swedish krona

Euro

Swiss frane

British pound sterling
Norwegian krone
Polish zloty

United states dollar
Danish krone
Swedish krona

58

2018
Local
Currency Euro (€}
1,358,100 € 1,358,100
16,269 15,175
326,028 382,480
218,765 24,025
409,654 92,811
777,520 738,417
1,081,342 145,375
2,130,523 221,619
€ 2,978,002
2015
Local
Currency Euro (€)

1,440,069 € 1,440,069
19,246 17,775
307,996 418,001
191,765 19,945
429,403 100,572
1,437,018 1,317,192
968,812 129,768
2,481252 271,097

€ 3,714,419
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Etro (€} unless otherwise stated)

Movements in the Company's provision for impainment of frade receivables during the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

At December 31, 2014 € 41,675
Provision for (recovery of provision for} impairment of trade receivables 99,013
Accaunts receivable wrile off {38,003)
At December 31, 2015 102 685
Provision for (recovery of provision for) impairment of trade receivables 39,238
Accounts receivable write off (62,057)
At December 31, 2016 € 79,866

13. Indirect Taxes

Indirect taxes receivable and indirect taxes payable at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of;

2016

Netharlands Batgium Denmark Finland Germany Sweden TFotal
Indirect tnmc receivahla € 2536828 € 4758 € 4010 € 1783 £ BR147 € 8080 & 381,414
Indirect twms payable (20,080) {83,414} {68.014) (150,672) {120.748) (443,208)
Indirect taxss receivable
{paysbla), net 253,826 __ (15300 {78,405) (68.231) {61.825) {112,856) (81,785)
Indirect taxes receivable 253,628 - - - - 253,628
indirect taxas payable € - € 15302 € 79405 € 882 € 61,825 € 112688 € 335420
2015
Natherlands Balgium Denmark Finland Germany Sweden Tota!
Indirect laxes recahable € B2865 € 24304 € 4,383 € 1432 € 80,388 € 7632 € 180,765
Ingiract taxes paystie {13.905) 77,129) (51,956) {142,087) {433.912) {434,983}
Indireci taxes receiveble
{payable), nat 62,656 4,390 (72.776) (60,524} (51,698) (126,280) (254,223)
indirect 1axes raceivable 62.656 4,399 - - - - 67,055
Indirect taxes pavabla € & - € 12716 € 6054 € 61688 € 128250 € 3Nn274

14. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets at Decemnber 31, 2016 and 2015 cansist of:

2016 2015
Security deposits € 51,778 € 79,811
Other current assets 271,687 48,664
Prepaid expenses and other current assets € 323,465 € 128,475
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

15.

16.

17.

18.

Cash at Banks

Cash at banks at December 31, 2016 and 2015 was located in the following territories:

2016 2015

Netherlands € 523435 € 411,691
Belgium 84,054 122,685
Germany 121,500 352,330
Sweden 280,869 594,831
Denmark 264,696 699,742
Finland 124,185 150,046

Cash at banks € 1,398,739 € 2331325

Share Capital and Share Premium

Details of the Company's share capital and share premium are disclosed in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Stock Option Plan

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the directars of the Company’s ultimate parent
coimpany - Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. - amended the terms of the Argon Medical Devices
Holding, Inc. 2010 Stock Option Plan (the "Plan”) to allow padicipation by non-U.8. based persans.
During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, zero options to purchase shares in Argon
Medical Devices Holding, inc., with an estimated fair value of €7 500 and €15,300, respectively,
were granted to an employee of the Company who provide services to the Company. -The
Company is not directly charged for the estimated fair valus, or cost, of these slock options by
Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc.; instead, the estimated fair value, or cost, of these stock
options is one factor, among many, used to determine the price paid to purchase inventories from
affiliates under the Company's global transfer pricing arrangement in place for ali affiliates of Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc.

Borrowings

Borrowings as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 consists of:

2016 2015

Loan to Argon Medical Devices, Inc, -€ 8,886,058 € 8,130,936
Loan to PBN Medical Denmark A/S . 2,700,748 2,461,250
Argon Medical Devices Danmark A/S 134,439 -
Argon Medical Devices SARL 210,000 -
Argon Medical Devices GmbH 200,000 -
Argon Medical Devices SL 125,000 -

Total borrowings € 12,256,245 € 10,592,186
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stafeq)

On April 12, 2013, the Company entered in $10,002,000 USD (€7,265,463) promissory note with
Argon Medical Devices, Inc., an affiliate of the Company's ultimate holding company. The
promissory note matures April 12, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1.00% and a 6.5% yield
{payable monthiy), and can be repaid at any fime without penalty or premium. This related party
borrowing is recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
carvied at amortized cost. The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2016 and
2015 is €8,86,058 and €8,130,936, respectively. Due to the related party nature of the Company’s
outstanding borrowings, no transaction costs or other direct fees were incurred regarding the
establishment of the promissory note,

19. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of:

2016 2015
Accrued outsource sendces € 310,086 € 187,162
Accounts payable 84,757 65,121
Accrued transportation expenses 139,195 80,812
Accrued professional fees 283,580 254 487
Accrued bonuses 196,326 216,537
Accrued compensated absences 210,286 224,988
Accrued commission 33,518 32,156
Cthers 182,461 133,730

€ 1450,208 € 1,194,893

20, Related Party Transactions

The following transactions and balances were carried out with affiliates of the Company's ultimate
holding company, Argon Medical Devices Hoiding, Inc.. during the years ended December 31,

2018 and 2015;

2016 2015
Purchases of goods
Argon Medical Devices, Inc. € 37385 € 594,555
Argon Crilical Care Systems Singapore, Pte. Lid. 11,942,121 13,580,404
Argon Medical Devices Japan KK 67,051 -
Royalty expense
Argon Medical Devices, inc. - 186,032

Goods bought from affiliates of the Company’s ultimate holding company, Argon Medica! Devices
Holding, Inc., are bought under a global transfer pricing arrangement which generally targets that
the manufacturer earn profits ranging from cost plus five percent (cost + 5%) to cosl plus seventy-
five percent {cost +75%) while allowing the Campany to earn prafits ranging from three percent
(3%) to five percent (6%) of sales.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stafed)

Argon Medicai Devices, Inc., an affiliate of the Company’s ultimate holding company, has a royalty
arrangement with a third party that requires the third party be paid a royalty on global sales of
licensed products based on the profitability of the associated products. The Company offers these
licensed products for sale across Europe, the Middle East, and Africa, and recognizes royalty
expense when these producis are sold which are paid to affiliates monthly. During the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized €0 and €186,032, respectively, in royalty
expense associated with the sale of these licensed products.

Additionally, certain employees of the Company's ultimate holding company, Argen Medical
Devices Holding, Inc. and its affiliates devote a portion of their time to performing human
resources, IT, payroll, accounts payable, and other functions on behalf of the Company in the
normal course of business. The Company is not directly charged for these services by Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc. or ils affiliates; instead, the cost of these services is one factor,
among many, used to determine the price paid to purchase inventories from affiliates under
the Company's global transfer pricing arrangement in place for ali affiliates of Argon Medical
Devices Holding, Inc.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the following related party receivables and payables were

outstanding:
2016 2015
Recejvables from related parties
Argon Critical Care Systems Singapore Pte. Ltd. € - € -
Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte. Ltd. 18,000 - 18,000
Total receivabies due from related parties £ 18,000 € 18,000
Payables to related parties
Argon Medical Devices, Inc. € 298347 € 399,799
Argon Critical Care Systems Singapore Pte. Lid, 1,425,386 1,993,701
PBN Medicals Denmark A/S (12,770) -
Argon Medical Devices Danmark A/S 33,290 2,180,680
Argon Medical Devices SARL 2,711 331,925
Argon Medical Devices GmbH 1,833 189,671
Argon Medical Devices S.L. 1,250 118 544
Others 96,317 28,800
Total payables due to related parties € 1846364 € 5243139
Loan due to related parties
Argon Medical Devices, Inc. € 88860588 . € 8,130,835
PBN Medicals Denmark A/S 2,700,748 . 2,461 250
Argon Medical Devices Danmark A/S 134,439 . -
Argon Medical Devices SARL 210,000 -
Argon Medical Devices GmbH 200,000 -
Argon Medical Devices SL 125,000 -
Total related party promissory note € 12256245 € 10,582186

Receivables due from Argon Critical Care Systems Singapore Pte. Ltd. arises from advanced
payment of purchase of goods.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€} unless otherwise stated)

Receivables due from Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte. Lid. are far expenditures made by
the Company on its behalf which are reimbursable.

Payables due to Argon Medica! Devices, Inc. arise mainly from the purchase of goods, the
obligation to reimburse Argon Medical Devices, Inc. for payments made by Argon Medical
Devices, inc. directly to the Company's vendors, and as a result of the royalty arrangement
described above. These payables are generally due two (2) to six (6) months after the date of
purchase, and do not bear interest.

Payables due fo Argon Critical Care Systems Singapore Ple, Lid. arise mainly from the purchase of
goods, are generally due twe (2) o six (6) months after the date of purchase, and do not bear
interest.

On December 31, 2015, the Company entered in short term promissory notes with its subsidiaries
Argon Medical Devices Danmark A/S, Argon Medical Devices SARL, Argon Medical Devices
GrbH and Argon Medica! Devices S.L. with principal balances of DKK 17,000,000 (€2,277,861),
€350,000, €200,000 and €125,000, respectively, to pay part of its outstanding trade payables to
Argon Medical Devices, inc. The promissory notes mature December 31, 2016, bear interest at a
coupon rate of 1.00% and a 6.5% yield payable upon maturity, These related party borrowings are
recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently carried at
amortized cost. As of December 31, 2016, the fair values of the promissory notes are €134 439,
€210,000, €200,000 and €125,000, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company entered in a promissory note with a
principal balance of $10,002,000 USD (€7,265,453) with Argon Medical Devices, Inc. The
promissory note matures April 12, 2018, bears Interest 4t a coupon rate of 1.00% and a 6.5% vieid
(payable monthly), and can be repaid at any time without penalty or premium. This related party
borrowing is recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
carried at amortized cost. The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2016 and
2015 is €8,886,058 and €8,130,936, respectively.

On December 31, 2015, the Company entered in $3,142,000 USD (€2,880,500) promissory nate
with PBN Medical Devices Denmark A/S (PBN), an affiliate of the Company's ulfimate holding
company, which converted its shori-term payable initially recognized in conjunction with the 2014
acquisition of Argon Medical Devices Danmark ApS to long-term as at 2015. The promissory note
matures December 31, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1.00% (payable annuaily) and can
be repaid at any time without penalty or premium. This related party borrowing is recognized
initially at falr value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently carried at amortized cost.
The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2016 is €2,700,748. Due to the related
party nature of the Company's outstanding borrowings, no transaction costs or other direct fees
were incurred regarding the establishment of the promissory note.
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stafed)
21. Management Board

The Company regards its Management Board, as defined by the Company's Articles of
Association, as key management of the Company. During the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, two (2) persons, were represented on the Management Board. The Dutch citizen on
the Company's Management Board, who is an employee and Director of the Company, received
approximately €129,000 and €114,000 in total remuneration during years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

The second member of the Company’'s Management Board, who is also a director of the Company,
is an employee of an affiliate of the Company's ultimate holding company, Argon Medical

Devices, Inc. All remuneration paid to this person was bore by that affiliate and none charged to
the Company during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,

22. Commitments

Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases office space in various countries throughout Europe and certain equipment
under non-cancelable operating ieases which expire at various dates through 2020. Under these
leases, the Company may be liable for certain other costs, including but not limited to, common
area maintenance charges or real estate taxes.

During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, total rent expense under non-cancelable
operating leases was approximately, €278,887 and €286 228, respectively.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as

follows:

2016 2015
Within a year € 279,789 € 287,784
Between two and five years 418,637 852,456
More than five years 100,719 251,141

€ 799,145 € 1,391,382

23. Appropriation of result

The net loss of €15,381,866 will be recorded within the Accumuiated Earnings. There is sufficient
cash flow from historical Accumulated Eamings to support future growth and operations of Argon
Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries. The Campany’s management board does not
recommend the payment of a dividend to the Company shareholders at this time.

24. Events occurring after the balance sheet date

The Company has evaluated the impact of subsequent events through June 21, 2017 the date the
consolidated financial statements were made available to be issued. The past and present
directors, Sharon McNally, Gregory Di Stefano, and Robert Jenkins authorized the financial
statements to be issued on the below noted date.
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; Sharon McNally Gregoiy Di Zlefano

Robert Jenkins
Director Directar Director
[Through March 20, 2017) {Inception March 21, 2017} [Ingeption March 21, 2017]
June 21, 2017 June 21, 2017 June 21, 2017
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Other information

Argon Medica! Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016

Provision in the articles of association governing the appropriation of profits

According to Article 11 of the articles of association the net profit for the year is at the free disposal of the
annual general meeting.
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